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Established in

1966, the objective of

Burshane LPG (Pakistan)
Limited is to engage efficiently,

esponsiblity and profitably in the LPG and
allied business. We seek a high Standard of
performance, maintaining a strong long-term and growing
position in the competive environment. The driving force behind
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited is a dedicated workforce made up of
experienced professionals and its continuous efforts in maintaining high standards
of technical resources and safety standards.
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VISION

To Be The Performer of first Choice

At Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited, we strive to provide
quality customer service through continous
improvements in our effort to make uninterrupted supply
of LPG to the users, development of our people and
maintening high standards of technical resources and
safety standards. Further we aim at sustained
profitability and value growth for aur shareholders
through strong financial foundation and loyal customers.
We shall strive to provide better choices to our
communities for improving quality of their life.
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LPG Autogas is by far the most widely available
environmentally friendly alternative fuel. Recent
independent tests have also shown that LPG has the best
environmental record compared with petrol and diesel.

Driving an LPG vehicle is safe, easy and best of all, much
cheaper than driving a petrol or diesel model. Engines running
on LPG produce less harmful emissions compared to petrol or
diesel, whlist making significent savings at the pumps.
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CONVENIENT
& SAFE DOMESTIC
USE




In both urban
and rural areas, LPG is being
widely used as an alternative source of Natural

Gas or where there is no access to central gas pipeline. In
domestic segment LPG is used mainly for cooking and heating
purposes, for economic reasons, convenience over traditional fuels as
well as to ensure Environment (HSSE).

Burshane LPG (Pakistan] Limited is among the pioneers in LPG
marketing and distribution in Pakistan. Company incorporated in 1966
and consistently developed and established its countrywide
distribution network which is primarily focused to cater the needs of
domestic users and deliver our best services to them.

Burshane LPG has a very clear strategy to offer and deliver

diffrentiated Customer Value Propositions to various segments of
market, to increase customer satisfaction and retain its position as
the premium LPG brand available in market.

Company is committed on attracting more sutomers and enhancing
the brand by providing products and sevices to creat customer loyalty
and market share on a sustainable basis. Consistent focus on our CVP
across the entire value chain has distinguished our brand among
compititors in industry. Our core values of honesty, integrity and
respect for people are at the heart of the way we manage our
business.
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MANAGEMENT

Mr. Asad Alam Niazi Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin Mr. Khurram Kasbati

Chief Executive Officer Director Finance Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Amir Aziz Mr. Asad Wasty Mr. Daniyal Mughal
Head of Operations Distribution Head of Internal Audit Company Secretary
& HSSE & Financial Controller
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burshane®

Mr.Shahid Abbas Mr. Irfan Javed Warsi Mr. Kashif Yousuf
Regional Sales Manager GM Commercial & Bussiness Sales Account Manager
(North) Development (HR)

Mr. Syed Muhammad Wasi Mr. Muhammad Sajjad Ahmed Mr. M Jawwad Khan Lodhi
Faisalabad Plant Manager Karachi Plant Manager Senior Manager IT & HR
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EFFICIENT
ECO-FRIENDLY

LPG is mclean - burning fuel which cleans the environment by
reducing air pollution. It has absolutely no lead content (safe vehicle
fuel) the perfect environment alternative - and is cheaper than
gasoline. It contributes to a healthier working environment and has
virtually no harmful exhaust emission. LPG is the fuel of the future.
Apart from being environmentally friendly, in Pakistan it can
significantly contribute to the economy by replacing Kerosene. It
can also assist in reducing de-forestation in cases where wood is
used as a source of energy, thus making the environment pollution
free and healthier. De-forestation leads to serious environmental
damage and disturbs the ecological balance causing erosion and
landslides in these areas. Thus there is a need to increase the
avdilability, as well as usage of LPG, as it can to some extent
overcome the de-forestation problem of the country. Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) Limited is actively playing its role by promoting the

superior environment and convenient aspects of LPG.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Chairman’s review report to the shareholders of Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024,

In view of the current economic and environmental uncertainties, including political instability unprecedented
inflationary pressures. These challenges have posed difficulties for the industry. Additionally. substantial reduction in
production of Pakistan Refinery Limited (PRL), Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL) and other
refineries including the reduction of allocation by Pak Arab Refinery Company (PARCO), has adversely affected the
economic activities of the Company. Moreover, Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) supply on the basis of tender in
which all companies participate are given equal quota which has also reduced LPG availability.

On demand side, numerous economic political challenges have had an adverse impact on offtake and the demand of
LPG remains low because of high inflation and affordability. While the availability of local LPG is low, the margin
on imported product reduced as well very low due to low demand as industries were on shutdown as due to restrictions
on import. Your company incurred loss after tax of Rs. 73.68 million during the year as compared to a loss of 66.15
million during last year. The net turnover was recorded at Rs. 2,377.50 million, 32.72% lower recorded for the
previous year ended June 30, 2023. Gross margin decreased to Rs. 137.94 million from Rs. 151.50 million during the
current year due to a combination of timely pricing actions.

Performance evaluation:

As required, under the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) and in pursuance of SECP’s guidelines, an
evaluation process is carried out online internally fo assess annual performance of the Board, members of the Board
as well as performance of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). A self-evaluation form is circulated to each of the
members of the Board, requiring them to complete the questionnaires with their comments. Results are compiled by
the Company Secretary and share subsequently in the next meeting of the Board with the intent to address areas of
further improvement. I am pleased to report that overall performance of the Board and CEO of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2024 remained satisfactory.

Operational excellence:

The Company continues to excel in its performance of Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) standards,
with no Lost Time Injury and Fatality. The management is continually looking for ways to reduce the environmental
impact of its operations, products and services.

We believe that sustainable development is only possible if business principles and best practices are complied,
adhered to and abided within the overall conduct of the business spectrum. Burshane has firmly embedded these
attributes in its rules of engagement and standard operating procedures (SOPs) in all aspects of its operations and shall
continuously strive to inculcate these principles amongst all stakeholders.

In the context of business growth, the management is fully aware of challenges faced and its obligations towards its
stakeholders. It stands committed to develop long-term corporate plans to increase the shareholder value in the
business. All possible options are being pursued to increase the market share of the Company and to enhance return
on capital employed. Therefore, the management remains confident that, going forward, it will be able show stronger
performance and turnaround the Company into a profitable venture.

It is pertinent to note, that the Company embarked upon an aggressive strategy fo ensure that all governance and issues related to
reputational risk are addressed appropriately. In this regard, outstanding banking matter, relating to long term loan was settled with
NBP, amicably. Similarly, matter related to FBR, highlighted in the press, was taken head on with FBR authorities and is
being addressed satisfactorily. The Company expects favourable outcome in near future.
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Role of the Chairman:

In my capacity as Chairman, I ensure that:

*  Board receives adequate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information in a timely manner for a thorough
discussion and a meaningful oversight on all aspects of the business.

=  Board is properly briefed on all significant matters.

= All key issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

*  Environment in board room remains conducive, allows constructive and open debates.

*  Board plays a constructive role in devising strategies, policies and its implementation.

. Strategies and policies agreed by the Board are effectively implemented by the Chief Executive Officer and the
management.

*  Decisions taken by the Board are in the best interest of the Company and fairly reflect consensus of the Board
members.

. Good corporate governance and procedures are in place.

Finally. T would like to thank the staff, all stakeholders, distributors and customers for their continuous support in
ensuring sustainable growth of the company and for making Burshane their brand of first choice.

At /6/-
/ ¢
Karachi Shaikh Abdus Sami
Dated: October 04, 2024 Chairman
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Directors' Report

The Directors of your Company are hereby presenting the financial information of the Company for the
vear ended June 30, 2024,

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the sales volume of the Company at 11.867 MTs, decreased by 7,797 MTs (65.70%) compared
to the corresponding period due to reduced local LPG quota and higher prices of imported LPG. Net sales of the Company
at Rs. 2,377.50 million decreased by Rs. 1,156.10 million (32.72%) due to reduction in sales volume during the period. The
gross margins of the Company at Rs. 137.94 million (5.80% of sales value) was decreased by Rs. 13.16 million from
comparative period of last year.

Administrative expenses increased by Rs. 1.62 million (1.39%) compared to comparative period of previous year, mainly
due to donation paid to M/s. Baitussalam Welfare Trust; and distribution & marketing expenses have decreased by Rs. 1.68
million.

Loss before tax of the Company at Rs. 76.34 million, is increased by Rs. 3.38 million from last year. Financial costs have
increased by 13.02 million due to higher KIBOR rates.

The Company's loss per share for the year under review is at Rs. 3.28 compared to loss per share of Rs. 2.94 per share in the
preceding year.

Material Changes and Commitments

On January 06, 2022, the Company received a revised proposal for the restructuring of loan from NBP which has since been
accepted and duly executed via offer letter No. NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2022/08. As per the aforementioned letter, the
long-term loan and accrued mark-up on long-term loan are termed as Demand Finance-I and Demand Finance-II. The
remaining outstanding loan of Rs 154 million has been restructured to rmunning finance facility. In respect of Demand Finance
- I, the Company has made principal down payment of Rs. 25.44 million and the balance of Rs. 75 million to be re-paid in
20 quarterly installments starting from September 30, 2022 with a grace period of 1 year from the date of the drawdown. The
facility carries mark-up af the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 2%, which will also be payable during the grace period. In respect
of Demand Finance - I, the Company has made a principal down payment of Rs. 10.59 million and the balance of Rs. 95.29
million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting from September 30, 2022.

A complaint was filed by the Directorate of Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) (I & I —IR) on August 31. 2020,
against the Company for alleged Tax evasion of approximately PKR 1.7 billion, with Special Court for Customs, Taxation
and (Anti-Smuggling). Based on this complaint the court passed 2 orders against the Company and some of its directors. The
orders were pertaining to freezing of Company’s 9 bank accounts for 90 days and issuance of Non Bailable Arrest Warrants
of its certain Directors. The Company immediately obtained Protective Bail from the High Court and subsequently from the
Special Court which was later confirmed.

The Company also filed a Constitutional Petition with High Court against the order of the Special Court for freezing of 9
bank accounts. All banks have removed the freeze on Company’s accounts on expiry of 90 days.

The Company had received notices under section 177(1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 regarding audit for tax years 2018
and 2019. The Company has replied and submitted relevant details and documents timely through various letters to FBR.
The Company has received further notices under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 demanded income tax
liability amounting to Rs. 609.79 million and Rs. 617.30 million for the tax year 2018 and 2019 respectively. An appeal was
preferred before the Commissioner Inland Revenue — Appeal (CIR-A) whereby the CIR-A remanded back the case to the
concerned Officer Inland Revenue (OIR). Thereafter, remanded back proceeding was initiated by the learned OIR. that
culminated on an order under section 124/129 of the Ordinance, whereby the demanded tax liability of Rs. 172.05 million
and Rs. 87.75 million for the tax year 2018 and 2019 was created. Being aggrieved, the Company again preferred an appeal
before CIR-A. that is currently pending.
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Business Ethics

We believe that sustainable development is only possible if we abide by our Business Principles. Burshane has firmly
embedded them in all the operations of the Company and we continuously strive to inculcate these principles among our

stakeholders.

In the context of business growth, we would like to assure you that the management of your company is fully aware of its
obligations towards its stakeholders and is determined to develop long-term corporate plans to increase the value of the
business. We are looking into all possible options to increase the market share and earn an adequate return on capital
employed of Burshane in a profitable manner; therefore, we are confident that we will show improved performance in the

coming periods.

We have once again excelled in our performance of Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE). with no lost time
injury and fatality. The management is committed towards not only improving the HSSE standards for itself but leading in

to establish best practices for the industry as well.

Composition of Board:

The total numbers of Directors are eight and their composition is as follows:

- Male: 7
. Female: 1

Category Name

Independent Director Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami
Maj. Gen (R) Rafiullah Khan
Brig. Rashid Siddiqi (R)

Ms. Shahbano Hameed
Mr. Osman Malik

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Ali Niazi

Executive Directors Mr. Asad Alam Niazi
Mr. Saifee Zakinddin

The following Committees continued to function as per the requirements of the law and as directed by the Board.

a) Audit Committee

Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R) - Chairman

Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami - Member

Mr. Muhammad Ali Niazi - Member
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R) h Chairman

Mr. Asad Alam Niazi - Member

Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin - Member

Mr. Muhammad Ali Niazi - Member

Brig. Rashid Siddiqi (R) = Member
Financial Highlights:

(Rs. in '000)
Following are the key numbers of the results for the year
Net Sales 2.377.502
Gross Margins 137.944
Loss before Tax 76,337
Loss after Tax 73.677
Loss per share 3.28
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Following is the appropriation:

Dividend declared

Cash

NIL

Bonus

NIL

The present Auditors M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorse the recommendation of the Audit Committee for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company for the financial year June 30, 2025, subject to shareholders’ approval in the Annual General

Meeting.

During the year, the Company has conducted Board performance evaluation by way of self-assessment by each Director and
have ensured that this requirement is fully complied with.

On behalf of the Board, we would like to thank our staff, business partners, customers and all other stakeholders for their
continued support in ensuring sustainable growth of the Company and for making Burshane their brand of first choice.

Saifet Zgkiuddin
Director

Karachi
Dated: October 04, 2024

Directok/ CEO
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HEALTH, SAFETY,
SECURITY &
ENVIRONMENT
HSSE

They ensure that all HSSE policies are properly observed
by providing support and resources for actions taken to
operate safely and to protect health, environment and to
exert a positive influence on the HSSE management of
contractors as they play a major role in achieving a high
level of HSSE performance. This is evident by the fact that
the period under review is without any lost time injury
(LTI). As a responsible cooperate citizen, we at Burshane
always belief that the only way to sustainable
development is through a strong commitment to Health,
Safety, Security and Environment in all areas of our
business.

In Burshane, HSSE is managed as the most critical
business activity. The Management at Burshane
demonstrates  strong, visible leadership  and
commitment by allocating sufficient resources to
operate and maintain HSSE Management System and
lead by example in their personal actions and behaviors.




= CORPORATE soi
~- RESPONSIBILITY

~ They ensure that all HSSE polfcies are properly
resources for actions taken to operate safely and to QL;,, '_; ) /

to exert a positive influence on the HSSE management of co tractors as thﬁy‘ pldy-a
mdjor role in achieving a high level of HSSE performance. This is evident by the fact
that the period under review is without any lost time injury’ (LT). As a responsible
cooperate citizen, we at Burshane always bel!eﬂﬁat the only way to sustainable
development is through a strong commitment to Heq,lth, Safety, Socunty and
Environment in all areas of our business.
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In Burshane, HSSE is managed ds the most critical business adﬁﬁ%ﬁ&fff{f"ﬁe
Management at Burshane demonstrates strong, visible leadership and commitment
by allocating sufficient resources to operate and maintain HSSE Management
‘# System and lead by example in their personal actions and behaviors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintain high standards of Corporate
Governance. The Board is pleased to give the following specific statements
to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance:

The financial statements, prepared by the
management of the Company, present its
state of affairs fairly, the results of its
operations, changes in equity and cash
flows.

Proper books of account of the Company
have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the
financial statements. Accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting
Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have
been followed in preparation of financial
statements and any departure there from
have been adequately disclosed and
explained.

The system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

There are no material departures from the
best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations except as
disclosed in the Statement of Compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance.

Key operating and financial data in
summarized form is annexed.

No trades in the shares of Burshane
LPG(Pakistan) Limited were carried out by
the Directors, CEO, CFO & Company
Secretary and their spouses and minor
children.

Majority of the directors on the Board, have
acquired the Directors’ Training Program
(DTP) certification while one director was
appointed during the year and will acquire
the DTP certification.
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Board Meetings:

The number of Board and Committees’
meetings held during the vyear and
attendance by each Director is disclosed on
page no. 184.

Board of Directors:

The Directors as on June 30, 2024 are Mr. Asad
Alam Niazi, Mr. Ali Alam Niazi, Mr. Shaikh Abdus

Sami, Ms. Shahbano Hameed, Mr. Saifee
Zakiuddin, Maij. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R), Brig.
Rashid Siddigi (R) and Mr. Osman Malik.

Karachi
Dated: October 04, 2024

BEZ ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Pattern of Shareholding:

The pattern of shareholding as of June 30,
2024 as required under section 227 of the
Companies Act, 2017 is given on
page no. 185.

Auditors:

The auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim Co. Chartered
Accountants, retire and being eligible offer
themselves for re-appointment. Audit
committee has recommended the
appointment of retiring auditors.

On behalf of the Board

)
i
g
Mr. Asad Alam Niazi
Director and Cheif Executive Officer




STATEMENT OF GENERAL

BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

Value

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited employees share a
set of core values — honesty, integrity and respect for
people. We also firmly believe in the fundamental
importance of trust, openness, teamwork and
professionalism, and pride in what we do.

Responsibilities
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited recognize five areas
of responsibility.

To Shareholders

To protect shareholders’ investment, and provide a
long-term return competitive with those of other
leading companies in the industry.

To Customers

To win and maintain customers by developing and
providing products and services which offer value in
terms of price, quality, safety and environmental
impact, which are supported by the requisite
technological, environmental and commercial
expertise,

To Those With Whom We Do Business

To seek mutually beneficial relationships with
contractors, suppliers and in joint ventures and to
promote the application of these Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) limited general business principles or
equivalent principles in such relationships. The ability
to promote these principles effectively will be an
important factor in the decision to enter into or
remain in such relationships.

To Society

To conduct business as responsible corporate
members of society, to comply with applicable laws
and regulations, to support fundamental human
rights in line with the legitimate role of business, and
to give proper regard to health, safety, security and
the environment.

To Employees

To respect the human rights of its employees and to
provide them with good and safe working conditions,
and competitive terms and conditions of
employment To promote the development and best
use of the talents of its employees; to create an
inclusive work environment where every employee
has an equal opportunity to develop his or her skills
and talents. To encourage the involvement of
employees in the planning and direction of their
work; to provide them with channels to report
concerns. We recognize that commercial success
depends on the full commitment of all employees.

Sustainable Development

As part of the Business Principles, we commit to
contribute to sustainable development. This requires
balancing short-term and long-term interests,
integrating economic, environmental and social
considerations into business decision- making.

Economics

Long-term profitability is essential to achieving
company's business goals and to its continued
growth. It is a measure both of efficiency and of the
value that customers place on Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) Limited products and services. It supplies
the necessary corporate resources for the continuing
investment that is required to develop and produce
future energy supplies to meet customer needs.
Without profits and a strong financial foundation, it
would not be possible to fulfil our responsibilities.
Criteria for investment and divestment decisions
include sustainable development considerations
(economic, social and environmental) and an
appraisal of the risks of the investment.

Health, Safety, Security Environment
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited has a systematic
approach to health, safety, security and
environmental management in order to achieve
continuous performance improvement. To this end,
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited manage these
matters as critical business activities, set standards
and targets for improvement, and measure,
appraise and report performance. Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) Limited continually look for ways to reduce
the environmental impact of its operations, products
and services.
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STATEMENT OF GENERAL

BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

Competition

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited support free
enterprise. It seeks to compete fairly and ethically and
within the framework of applicable competition laws;
the Company will not prevent others from competing
freely with it.

Local Communities

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited aim to be good
neighbors by continuously improving the ways in
which we contribute directly or indirectly to the
general well-being of the communities within which it
works. Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited manage the
social impacts of its business activities carefully and
work with others to enhance the benefits to local
communities, and to mitigate any negative impacts
from its activities. In addition, Burshane LPG (Pakistan)
Limited take a constructive interest in societal
matters, directly or indirectly related to its business.

Business Integrity

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited insist on honesty,
integrity and fairness in all aspects of its business and
expect the same in its relationships with all those with
whom it does business. The direct or indirect offer,
payment, soliciting or acceptance of bribes in any
form is unacceptable. Employees must avoid
conflicts of interest between their private activities
and their part in the conduct of company business.
Employees must also declare to the company
potential conflicts of interest. All business
transactions on behalf of Burshane LPG (Pakistan)
Limited must be reflected accurately and fairly in the
accounts of the company in accordance with
established.

Communication and Engagement

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited recognize that
regular dialogue and engagement with its
stakeholders is essential. Burshane LPG (Pakistan)
Limited is committed to reporting of its performance
by providing full relevant information to legitimately
interested parties, subject to any overriding
considerations of business confidentiality. In its
interactions with employees, business partners and
local communities, the company seek to listen and
respond to them honestly and responsibly.

Political Activities

Company: Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited act in a
socidlly responsible manner within the laws of the
countries in which it operates in pursuit of its
legitimate commercial objectives. Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) Limited do not make payments to political
parties, organizations or their representatives,

m ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited do not take part in
party politics. However, when dedling with
government, Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited have
the right and the responsibility to make its position
known on any matters which affect itself, its
employees, its customers its shareholders or local
communities in a manner whichis in accordance with
its values and the Business Principles.

Employees: Where individuals wish to engage in
activities in the community, including standing for
election to public office, they will be given the
opportunity to do so where this is appropriate in the
light of local circumstances.

Compliance

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited comply with all
applicable laws and regulations of the country in
which it operates. Living by the Principles. The shared
core values of honesty, integrity and respect for
people, underpin all the work the company does and
are the foundation of its Business Principles.

The Business Principles apply to all transactions, large
or small, and drive the behavior expected of every
employee in Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited in the
conduct of its business at all times. The Company
encourage its business partners to live by them or by
equivalent principles. Burshane LPG (Pakistan)
Limited encourage its employees to demonstrate
leadership, accountability and teamwork, and
through these behaviors, to contribute to the overall
success of the Company.

It is the responsibility of management to lead by
example, to ensure that all employees are aware of
these principles, and behave in accordance with the
spirit of this statement. The application of these
principles is underpinned by a comprehensive set of
assurance procedures, which are designed to make
sure that company employees understand the
principles and confirm that they act in accordance
with them.

As part of the assurance system, it is also the
responsibility of management to provide employees
with safe and confidential channels to raise concerns
and report instances of non-compliance. In turn it is
the responsibility of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
employees to report suspected breaches of the
Business Principles to the Company. The Business
Principles have for many years been fundamental to
how the company conduct its business and living by
them is crucial to Its continued success.

burshane




No

tice of 58" Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the 58 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
will be held on Monday, October 28, 2024 at 11:30 A.M. at our Korangi Plant (KP1) adjacent to Pakistan Refinery

Limite
office:

d, Korangi Creek, Karachi and the transport facility will be arranged and depart on 10:15A.M. from our head
Horizon vista, Block 4, Scheme no. 5, Clifton to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

l.

2,

Karac

Notes:

1.

L

To confirm minutes of the 57 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 27, 2023.

To consider and approve the circulation of the Annual Audited Financial Statements together with
Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2024 to Members of the
Company through QR enabled code and weblink, as allowed by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan vide S.R.0O. 389(0)/2023 dated March 21, 2023.

To appoint auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2025 and to fix their remuneration.
The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended the name of retiring auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim
& Co., Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2025.
The retiring auditors, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment for the year ending June 30,
2025.

To elect nine (09) Directors of the Company as fixed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on
September 23, 2024 in accordance with the Section 159(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 for a period of three
years, commencing from October 28, 2024.

The names of retiring Directors are listed as under:

a) Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami

b) Mr. Asad Alam Niazi

c) Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin

d) Mr. Ali Alam Niazi

e) Maj Gen. (R) Rafiullah Khan Niazi

f) Brig. (R) Rashid Siddiqi

g) Ms. Shahbano Hameed

h) Mr. Osman Malik

To consider any other business with the permission of the chair.

By Order of the Board

(Damniyal Mughal)
hi: October 04, 2024 Company Secrefary

In accordance with the Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to SRO 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023 of the Securities & Exchange Commission, the Company has obtained Shareholders’
approval in the 57th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 27, 2023 to circulate the
Annual Report of the Company to Members through QR enabled Code and Weblink. The Annual Report is
available through following QR Code and Weblink.
A
by

https://burshane.com/annual-report/ E
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2. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 22 to October 28, 2024 (both
days inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited,
Plot No.C-32, Jami Commercial Street-2, D.H.A., Phase-VII, Karachi by the close of business on October
21. 2024 will be considered in time for the determination of any entitlement, as recommended by the Board
of Directors, attending the meeting and vote at the meeting.

3. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the Annual Report containing the Annual
Audifed Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 is available on the Company’s website.

4. Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through the Zoom application are hereby requested to get
themselves registered with the Company Secretary's office by providing the following details at the earliest
but not later than 48 hours before the time of AGM (i.e., before 11:30 A.M. on October 26, 2024) through
following means:

1) Mobile/WhatsApp: 0340 0377682
ii) E-mail: companysecretary@burhsane.com

Shareholders are advised to mention Name, CNIC Number, Folio/CDC Account Number, cell number and
email ID for identification.

Upon receipt of the above information from the interested shareholders, the Company will send the login
credentials at their e-mail address. On the date of AGM, shareholders will be able to login and participate in
the AGM proceedings through their smartphone/computer devices.

Shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda item of the AGM by
using the aforesaid means,

5. Election of Directors

The term of office of the current directors of the Company will expire on October 28, 2024. In accordance
with Section 159(1) of the Act, the Board of Directors has fixed the number of directors to be elected at the
AGM at nine (09) to hold the office of director for a period of three (3) years commencing from October 28,
2024,

Independent directors shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Companies (Manner and Selection of
Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018.

Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 7A of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Election of Directors will be held in the following Categories:

Category of Director Vacancies
Independent Directors 03
Other Directors 05
Female Directors 01

Any person who seeks to contest the election in the abovementioned categories, as the case may be, whether
he/she is a retiring director or otherwise, shall file the following documents with the Company Secretary, at
the Registered Office of the Company, situated at Suite 101, 1% floor, Horizon Vista, Plot No. Commercial
— 10, Block-4. Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi not later than 14 days before the date of the AGM:

a) Notice of his/her intention and selection of any one category in which he/she intends to contest for the
election to the office of Director in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act, 2017. Any member
while submitting his/her Notice of intention shall select any one of the above categories and clearly
mention in his/her Notice of intention for which category he/she seeks to contest the Election of
Directors.

b) Consent to Act as Director (Appendix to Form-9). as prescribed under the Companies Regulations, 2024
and Section 167(1) of the Companies Act, 2017:

¢) A detailed profile along with his/her office address;
BEEN ANNUAL REPORT 2024




d) Declaration in respect of being compliant with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the eligibility criteria, as set out in Section 153 of the
Companies Act, 2017 to act as director or an independent director of a listed company:

e) Attested copy of valid CNIC and NTN;

f) Independent Director(s) will be elected through the process of election of director in terms of Section
159 of the Act and they shall meet the criteria laid down in Section 166 of the Act, and the Companies
(Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018, accordingly the following
additional documents are to be submitted by the candidates intending to contest election of directors as
an independent director:

e Declaration by Independent Director(s) under Clause 6(3) of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019:

e Undertaking on non-judicial stamp paper that he/she meets the requirements of sub-regulation (1) of
Regulation 4 of the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018.

The final list of contesting directors will be circulated not later than seven days before the date of said meeting.
in terms of section 159(4). Further, the website of the Company will also be updated with the required
information.

6. Procedure For E-Voting and Voting through Postal Ballot

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation, 2018, the right to vote through electronic voting
facility will be provided if the number of persons who offer themselves to be elected is more than the number
of directors fixed in each category under Section 159(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 7A of
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

Details of e-voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the Company who have their
valid CNIC numbers, Cell Numbers and e-mail addresses available in the register of Members of the Company
within due course.

E-Voting lines will start from October 23, 2024, 09:00 A.M. and shall close on October 27, 2024 at 05:00
P.M. Members can cast their votes any time in this period. Once the vote is cast by a member. he / she shall
not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The member may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot which will be circulated to them. The postal
ballot paper will also be available for download from the website of the Company at www.burshane.com.

The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with copy of Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC), should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company’s registered
address at Suite 101, 1° floor, Horizon Vista, Plot No. Commercial — 10, Block-4, Scheme No. 5. Clifton.
Karachi one day before AGM i.e., on October 27, 2024 by 05:00 P.M.

A postal ballot received after this time/date shall not be considered for voting. The signature on the ballot
paper shall match the signature on CNIC.

Once the vote is cast by a member/proxy holder, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Please note that in case of any dispute in voting including the casting of more than one vote, the decision of
the Chairman of the meeting shall be final.

7. Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy who
shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a
member.

ii) A duly completed instrument of proxy to be valid must be deposited at the registered office not less
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the

member and the Proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.
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iii) The instrument of proxy should be duly signed, stamped and witnessed by two persons with their
names, address, CNIC numbers and signatures.

iv) CDC account holders are also required to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 dated 26,
January 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

For Attending the Meeting:

1) Incase of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person, whose securities are
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate
his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original
passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii) Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring their

particulars, I.D. numbers and account numbers in CDS.

iii) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

For Appointing Proxies:
i) Incase of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the

proxy form as per requirement notified by the Company.

ii)  The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names. addresses and CNIC numbers shall
be mentioned on the form.

i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with
the proxy form.

tv)  The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v)  Corporate entities shall submit the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen
signature along with proxy form.

8. Change in Members Addresses:
Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar M/s.
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

9, Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs (mandatory):
Members, who have not vet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC along with folio number are
requested to send the same, at the earliest, directly to the Company’s Share Registrar.

10. Payment of Dividend through electronic mode (Mandatory):
Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to
pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated
by the entitled shareholders.
In order to receive dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Electronic
Credit Mandate Form available on Company’s website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC
to the Registrar of the Company. in case of physical shares.
In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to
shareholder’s broker / participant / CDC account services.
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<

Conversion of Physical Shares into CDC Account

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has issued a letter No. CSD/ED/Misc./2016-
639-640 dated March 26, 2021 addressed to all listed companies drawing their attention towards the
provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 (Act) which requires them to replace shares issued by
them in physical form with shares in the Book Entry Form within a period not exceeding four years from
the date of the promulgation of the Act.

In order to ensure full compliance with the provisions of the aforesaid Section 72 and to benefit from the
facility of holding shares in the Book Entry Form, the Shareholders who still hold shares in physical form
are requested to convert their shares in the Book Entry Form.

Unclaimed dividends & bonus shares:

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or did not collect their
physical shares, are advised to contact our Share Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd. to collect/enquire
about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

Please note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the
stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three years from the date due and payable shall
be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government and in case of shares, shall be delivered to the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 166(3) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

The Term of Office of the Retiring Directors will expire on October 28. 2024 and the Board of Directors of
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (the Company) will be re-constituted for the next term of three years by
electing nine (09) directors including three (03) independent directors and one (01) female director in
Annual General Meeting to be held on October 28. 2024.

Section 166(3) of the Companies Act 2017 provides that a statement of material facts is annexed to the
Notice of the General Meeting called for the purpose of Election of Directors which shall indicate the
justification for choosing the appointee for appointment as Independent Director.

Pursuant to the above-mentioned provision, Independent Directors will be elected through the process of
Election of Directors as laid down under Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Company will ensure that the Independent Directors to be elected meet the criteria set out for
independence under Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 and regulations issued thereunder and their
names are listed on the data bank of Independent Directors maintained by Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance. The Company while selecting Independent Directors shall assess respective competencies,
diversity, skill, knowledge and experience of the Candidate.

The Candidates are requested to read the relevant provisions/requirements relating to the

Appointment/Election of Directors. as mentioned in the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations. 2019 and ensure compliance with the same in letter and spirit.
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SIX YEARS SUMMARY

Trading Results

Net turnover

Gross profit

Operating profit / (loss)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
Earnings / (loss) after tax

Interim dividend

Final dividend

Earnimgs / (loss) before tax

Financial Position

Share capital

Reserves and Retained Earnings
Property, plant and equipment and mntangibles
Long-term/deferred hiabilities
Inventory

Debtor

Craditor

Total Assets

Total current assets

Total current Liabilities

Number of 1ssued shares

Cash & Cash equuivalents

Investors Information

Profitability Ratios

Gross profit ratio

Profit / (loss) before tax to sales

Profit / (loss) after tax m percent of sales
EBITDA Margin to sales

Return on equity/ capital employed

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover ratio (1n tunes)
Inventory turnover ratio (no. of days)
Debtor tumover ratio (in times)
Debtor turnover ratio{no.ofdays)
Creditor turnover ratio (1n times)
Creditor turnover ratio (no. of days)
Operating cycle (no. of days)

Total assets furnover ratio (in times)
Total assets turnover ratio (in days)

Liquidify Ratios

Curent ratio

Quick/ acid test ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities
Investment/Market Ratios
Earnimgs / (loss) per share

Break-up value per share

Cash Flows
Net cash flows (used ) / from operating activities

Net cash used 1n mvesting activities
Met cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) / mcrease in cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

2,377,502 3,533,606 4494 627 2,591,297 2582454 3,249.870
137,944 151,100 166,150 33,489 133816 215355
(429) (7,341) 40311 (137.139) (26,008) 69,866
58462 53,710 95,293 (43,951) 75,146 177,939
(73,677) (66,151) 26,839 (119.754) (109.469) 25,857
- - = - 22640 16,980
(70,253) (64,148) 26,653 (164.128) (70,559) 64,974
224 888 224 888 224 888 224 888 224 888 224 888
245,036 318,713 384564 351,679 464268 594 556
862,959 873,531 850,427 833,791 902887 867.229
570,142 589,735 608,758 466,572 431,771 388,579
8,197 26,348 44925 19,134 43 901 75422
76,722 101,847 87,747 87,665 24 776 23422
64,795 103,715 112,827 108,026 138,743 91,342
1475463 1,564,802 1.696427 1,664,543 1,749 450 1,731.847
306,239 385,006 539,735 524134 420,223 437,872
435397 431 466 478217 621404 628,523 5233824
22,489 22,489 22,489 232,489 22 489 22 489
3,615 20,154 96,296 92,822 265,197 173,732
5.80% 4.28% 3.70% 1.29% 5.18% 6.63%
-2.95% -1.82% 0.59% -6.33% -2.73% 2.00%
-3.10% -1.87% 0.60% -4.62% -4.24% 0.80%
2.46% 1.52% 2.12% -1.70% 291% 548%
-15.68% -12.17% 4.40% -20.77% -15 88% 3.16%
129 66 9492 135.14 81.16 41.04 3554
3 4 3 4 9 10

26.63 3728 S1.25 46.09 107.16 158.24
14 10 7 8 3 2
26.58 3124 3920 20.73 21.28 2242
14 12 9 18 17 16
3 2 1 () (3) 4

156 217 2.67 1.52 148 1.87
23337 168 43 136.47 24044 246.02 19554
0.70 0.89 113 084 0.67 0.84
0.68 0.83 1.03 0.81 0.60 0.69
0.01 0.05 0.20 0.15 042 033
(3.28) (2.94) 1.19 (5.33) (4.87) 1.15
20.90 2417 27.10 2564 30.64 36.44
23651 85,945 (107.251) (144 436) 153,889 99 849
(19,207) (80,298) (45.839) (20,224) (48,003) (29.067)
(21,282) (84.429) 5,503 (7.715) (14,421) (7,972)
(16,838) (78,782) (147.587) (172,375) 91,465 62.810
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RS. IN MILLIONS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TOTAL ASSETS

1,800

RS. IN MILLIONS

1,450

1,750
1,700
1,650
1,600
1,550
1,500

2018 2019 2020 2021

NET SALES

2000 4,495

4,500
4:000 3,534
3,500
3,000
2,378

2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

2024 2023 2022

2022 2023 2024 2025

3,250

2,591 2,582

2021 2020 2018

GROSS PROFIT

RS. IN MILLIONS

2024 W2023 ®2022 @2021 W@2020 M2019
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RS. IN MILLIONS

RS. IN MILLIONS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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Horizontal Analysis of
Financial Statements

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

Balance Sheet

Noo-current assets 1,169,224 1,179,796 1.156.692 1,140 409 1329227 1293975
Current assats 306,239 385006 539,735 524.134 4202123 437872
Total assets 1475463 1,564,802 1,696 427 1,664,543 1,749,450 1,731,847
Equity 133.209 206.R86 272737 240,132 352,741 544 679
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 336,715 336,715 336,715 336415 336,413 274,765
Non-current liabilines 570,142 589.735 608758 466,572 431771 388579
Current Liabihites 435.397 431.466 478.217 621404 628,323 513,824
Total equity and liabilities 1475463 1,564,802 1,696 427 1.664.543 1,742,450 1,731,847

Profit or Loss

Net sales 2,377,502 3,533,606 4,494 627 2,591.297 2582454 3249870
Cost of product sold (2.239.558) (3.382.507) (4328477) (2,557,808) (2448 638) (3.034 515)
Gross profit 137044 151 099 166.150 33480 133 816 215355
Administrative expenses (117.647) (116,028} (115.922) (124.738) (111,555) (106,575)
Distribution and marksting expenses (64,197) (63 B30) (68.977) (66.446) (70.600) (68.780)
Other income 63,674 n411 67122 20,454 34996 42,645
Other expenses (22.203) (6.943) (8.062) {8.898) (12 665) (12,779)
(138:373) (158.440) (125:839) (170.628) (159.824) (145489)
Operating profit (42 (7.341) 40311 (137,139) (26.008) 69,866
Finance costs (62.824) (56.207) (13.658) (26,939) (44.191) (4.802)
Profit ( (loss) before tazation (70.253) (64.148) 16,653 (164.128) (70,199) 64974

%9 increase / (decrease) over preceeding vear

Balance Sheet

Non-current assets -0.90% 2.00% 1.43% -14.21% 2.73% —1.00%
Current assets -20 46% -28.67% 198% 24.73% -4 03% §.84%
Total assets -5.71% -7.76% 192% 4 85% 1.02% -1.05%
Equaty 33.61% =24 14% 13.57% -31.92% -35 24% 9.45%
Non-current labilities =3.32% -3.12% 30.47% 8.06% 11.12% 3.06%
Cusrent Liabilities 0.91% -9.78% -23.04% -1.13% 19009 -12.81%
Total equity and liabilities -3 71% -7.76% 192% -4 85% 1.02% -1.05%
Profit or Loss

Net sales 32.72% -21:38% 7345% 0.34% -20.54% 11.07%
Cost of product sold -33.79% -21.85% 69.23% 4 46% -19.31% 12.66%
Gross profit -£.71% -9.06% 396.13% -74.87% -37.86% -7.38%
Admimstrative expenses 1.40% 0.09% -707% 11.82% 4.67% -1.95%
Dismbunon and markenng expenses -2.35% ) 381% -3.88% 3.65% 7.09%
Other operating income 115.95% -34.69% 127:89% -15.84% -17.94% 20.04%
Other operating expensas 219.79% -13.38% -0.40% 9.74% -0.89% 10.48%
Operating profit -04 16% -11821% -12939% 427.30% -13723% -1639%
Finance costs 2291% 31592% -0 309, -38.03% 803 33% -B3 68%
Profit before taxation -9.52% 340 .68% 116 24% -133.80% -208.04% 2126%
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
Year Ending June 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
l. The total number of directors are eight (08) as per the following:

a) Male =
b) Female = 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Category Name
Independent Director Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami
Maj. Gen (R) Rafiullah Khan (R)
Brig. Rashid Siddiqi (R)
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Ali Alam Niazi
Ms. Shahbano Hameed
Mr. Osman Malik

Executive Directors Mr. Asad Alam Niazi
Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin

(=8

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies. including
this company;

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate
it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date
of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board/
Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board
for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations;

9. Majority of the directors on the Board. have acquired the Directors Training Program (DTP) certification while one
director was appointed during the year and will acquire the DTP certification within a period of one year from the date
of appointment as a director on the Board:

10. No new appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit has been made.
However, the Board has approved their annual remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
g Z with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

: ANNUAL REPORT 2024 5




11. Chief financial officer and Chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed following Committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R) = Chairman
Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami = Member
Mr. Ali Alam Niazi = Member

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R) = Chairman
Mr. Asad Alam Niazi - Member
Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin - Member
Mr. Ali Alam Niazi - Member
Brig. Rashid Siddiqgi (R) = Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the Committee for
compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee = 04 meetings were held during the year
b) HR and Remuneration Committee - 01 meeting was held during the year

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and
the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent., dependent and non-dependent
children) of the chief executive officer. chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of
the Company:

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that

they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3,6,7.8.27.32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
with.

/{) Aa /"/‘ 2 f,

Shaikh Abdus Sami Asad Alam Khan
Chairman Directdr / CEO

Dated: October 04, 2024
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
B Fax: +92 21 3568 4219 Lakson Square, Building No.1
www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

e Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BURSHANE LPG (PAKISTAN)
LIMITED ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects,

with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2024.

. \
KARACHI (WAN— .
DATED: October 04, 2024 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
UDIN: CR202410067WwsqQPZIL A

mEbrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
ahim & Co., a Pakitan regutered partnership fum, mber ol BDO Inte | Limited,
M'mmdmnmtwn:o i W, 118 s & UK company limited by guarantee,
bague
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
I Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No. 1
Y ——— www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BURSHANE LPG (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
(the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024,
and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the loss and other comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the unconsolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following:

1. Note 31.1.1 to the unconsolidated financial statements which provide details regarding transactions
with the Roots International Brands Private Limited (RIBS) and investigation order passed by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

2. Note 31.1.5 to the unconsolidated financial statements which provide details regarding complaint
filed by Directorate of Intelligence and Investigation, Inland Revenue, Karachi with the Court of
Special Judge (Customs, Taxation and Anti-Smuggling), Karachi, (Trial Court) against the Company
and its Directors alleging tax evasion. The company has been demanded tax liability of Rs. 172.05
million and Rs. 87.75 million for the tax year 2018 and 2019.The company again preferred an appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeal (CIR-A) that is currently pending.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No. 1
www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Key Audit Matters

Karachi-74200
Pakistan

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

S.
No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1

Contingencies

As disclosed in note 31 of the
unconsolidated financial statements,
the Company has contingencies and
litigations in respect of legal, sales
tax and income tax matters, which
are pending adjudication with
respective authorities at various
legal forums available.

Contingencies require management
to make judgments and estimates in
relation to the interpretation of
relevant laws, rules and regulations,
probability of outcome and financial
impact, if any, for recognition,
measurement and disclosure of any
related provision or any other
element of unconsolidated financial
statements.

Due to significance of amounts
involved, inherent uncertainties with
respect to the outcome of such
matters and wuse of significant
management judgments and
estimates to assess the same
including any related financial
impacts, we considered
contingencies and litigations in
respect of legal, sales tax and
income tax matters, a key audit
matter.

We have undertaken a number of procedures to verify
the contingencies and their consequential impact on
the unconsolidated financial statements. This
included, among others:

* We obtained and reviewed the details of pending
legal, sales tax and income tax matters and
discussed the same with the management;

* We checked orders by relevant authority on
previous lawsuits / cases appearing in the
unconsolidated financial statements;

* We followed the progress of each case and the
Company’s estimate of the cost to be incurred;

* We obtained confirmations from legal advisors for
current status on pending previous cases and any
new case filed during the year;

e We reviewed the key elements of the
methodology employed by management in
challenging reasonableness of the cost estimates;
and

* We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in respect of contingencies in accordance
with the financial reporting standards.

BDO Ebrahim & Co.

Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.,
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No. 1
www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-74200
Pakistan

:l'o Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
2. Revenue

The Company’s total revenue is
amounting to Rs. 2,377 million,
which is predominantly generated
from sales of liquefied petroleum gas
(LPG) and low-pressure regulators
(LPR) revenue which reflect an
decrease of 33% from the previous
year, representing a significant
element of the unconsolidated
financial statements as disclosed in
note 32.

Revenue is generated from trading
and storing of Liquefied Petroleum
Gas (LPG) throughout Pakistan and
trading of Low Pressure Regulators
(LPR). Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognized when
control of goods is transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods. The
Company has generally concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services befare
transferring them to the customer.

As such, revenue recognition is not
an area of significant risk for our
audit but does require significant
time and resource to audit due to its
magnitude.

The risk of material misstatement
was considered significant due to
high control risk on completeness
and accuracy of revenue and high
inherent risk of fraud on recognition
of revenue.

In view of the significance of revenue

We performed a range of audit procedures in
relation to revenue including the following:

* We considered the appropriateness of the
Company’s revenue recognition accounting
policies;

* We obtained understanding of the revenue
related processes;

e We perform test of details on revenue
recognized during the year, on a sample basis,
including review of order receipt, invoicing and
delivery;

« We performed cut-off procedures on
transactions occurring either immediately
before or after the year end to assess the
recording of revenue in correct accounting
period; and

e  We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in respect of revenue in accordance with
the financial reporting standards.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms,

by

burshane
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030
Fax: +92 21 3568 4239
www.bdo.com.pk

2nd Floor, Block-C

Sarwar Shaheed Road
Karachi-74200
Pakistan

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

and high assessed risk of material
misstatement revenue is considered
as key audit matter.

Impairment of goodwill

The goodwill arose upon the
amalgamation with Holding company
as disclosed in note 8.2.

The Company’s assessment of
impairment of goodwill is a
judgmental process which requires
estimates concerning the forecast
future cash flows associated with the
goodwill held, the discount rates and
the growth rate of revenue and costs
to be applied in determining the
value in use.

At the year end, the Company, for
the purpose of impairment testing on
goodwill, has calculated recoverable
amount (value-in-use) of Cash
Generating Unit amounting to Rs.
868.395 million. The carrying amount
of net assets (including goodwill) as
of the valuation date is Rs. 469.924
million. As a result, value-in-use
exceeds the carrying amount of net
assets (including goodwill) hence, no
impairment in goodwill has been
identified as a result of this review.

In view of the estimates and
judgements used by the management
for the calculation of impairment of
goodwill, it is therefore considered
as key audit matter.

The Company’s assessment of
impairment of goodwill is a
judgmental process which requires
estimates concerning the forecast
future cash flows associated with the
goodwill held, the discount rates and
the growth rate of revenue and costs

Our work involved the following:

We have assessed the design and
implementation of the Company’s controls
relating to Management's impairment review of
goodwill.

We have tested the accuracy of the underlying
model to assess whether the processes are
applied to the correct input data and the outputs
are mapped accurately.

We challenged each of the key assumptions
employed in the annual goodwill impairment
test. This included reference to our internal
valuation specialists’ benchmarking of the
weighted average cost of capital rate (‘WACC’)
employed as the discount rate employed,
including its methodology and constituent inputs
and an assessment of the Company’s historic
forecasting accuracy.

We have tested management’s sensitivity
analysis in relation to the key inputs to the
goodwill impairment test model, as well as
performing our own sensitivity analysis which
included changes to volume, margin, incentives
and the discount rate applied.

We have reviewed the appropriateness of the
disclosures provided in accordance with IAS 36
‘Impairment of Assets’.

Lakson Square, Building No. 1

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms,
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S. Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

to be applied in determining the
value in use.

There was no impairment in the
current year

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.,
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
I Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No. 1
Y ——— www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-74200
Pakistan

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
I Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No. 1
e www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-74200
Pakistan

b) Except for the matter as disclosed in basis for qualified opinion, the unconsolidated statement of
financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows and the unconsolidated statement
of changes in equity together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

KARACHI A~ A
DATED: October 04, 2024 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN:  AR202410067mQcufkhde A

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms,
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
2024 2023
Note —— (Rupees in "000)
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property. plant and equipment 7 816,745 817,215
Intangible assets 8 299,305 309.407
Long-term investment 9 50,000 50,000
Long-term deposits 3.174 3.174
1,169,224 1,179,796
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 10 6,038 4,321
Stock-in-trade 11 8.197 26,348
Trade debts 12 76.722 101,847
Loans and advances 13 19.746 36.170
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14 29.509 43,529
Taxation - net 5] 162,412 152,637
Cash and bank balances 16 3,615 20.154
306,239 385,006
TOTAL ASSETS 1,475,463 1,564,802
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital 17 900,000 900,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 18 224.888 224,888
Capital reserves
Revaluation surplus of property 19 336,715 336,715
Other reserves 19 123,281 123,281
Revenue reserve 20 (214.960) (141.283)
469.924 543,601
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loan 21 68.710 91,729
Lease liabilities 22 23.364 15,889
Deferred taxation - net 23 - 2,660
Cylinder and regulator deposits 24 478,068 479.457
570,142 589,735
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loan from a subsidiary company 25 50.000 50.000
Trade and other payables 26 64,795 103,715
Short-term loan 27 13,388 -
Short-term borrowings 28 154.000 153,701
Unclaimed dividends 29 §3.050 83.050
Accrued mark-up 30 26,953 11,886
Current portion of long-term loan 21 33,165 24,948
Current portion of lease liabilities 22 10,046 4.166
435.397 431,466
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,475,463 1,564,802
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 31
The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part oi; ryese financial statements.
Vd 4 P e

S ~

DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note —————— (Rupees in '000)

Sales - net 32 2,377,502 3.533.606
Cost of sales 33 (2,239.558) (3,382.507)
Gross profit 137,944 151,099
Administrative expenses 34 (117,647) (116.028)
Distribution and marketing expenses 35 (64,197) (65,880)
Other income 36 65,674 30,411
Other expenses 37 (22,203) (6.943)

(138,373) (158.440)
Operating loss (429) (7.341)
Financial costs 38 (69,824) (56,807)
Loss before minimum tax differential and income tax (70,253) (64,148)
Minimum tax differential 39 (6,084) (8.810)
Loss before income tax (76,337) (72,958)
Taxation 40 2,660 6.807
Loss for the year after taxation (73.677) (66,151)

——————— (In Rupees)

Loss per share - basic and diluted 41 (3.28) (2.94)

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e 7
P / / A
DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUT-'I’RTE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000)
Loss for the year after taxation (73,677) (66,151)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
statement of profit or loss:
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of retirement and 479
other service benefits ) -
Less: deferred taxation thereon - (122)
- 300
Total comprehensive loss for the year (73,677) (65,851)
The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.
e
/ Y A % el .,_,a,\_,_,:D
|
DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note  ——— (Rupees in '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 45 55,498 124,514

Retirement and other service benefits - net - 3,101

Taxes paid (15,859) (36,790)

Finance costs paid (40,721) (40,271)

Cylinder and regulator deposits - net 24,733 35,391

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 23,651 85,945
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (32,556) (33,667)

Purchases of intangible asset = (50,150)

Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 13,349 3,519

Net cash used in investing activities (19.207) (80,298)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term loan repaid (21,792) (29,293)

Short-term loan received 128,820 172,000

Short-term loan paid 27 (115,432) (217,000)

Payment of lease liabilities (12,878) (10,136)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (21,282) (84,429)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (16,838) (78,782)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (133,547) (54,765)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (150,385) (133,547)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year comprise of:

Cash and bank balances 16 3,615 20,154

Short-term borrowings 28 (154,000) (153,701)

(150,385) (133,547)

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/r.u //

/{

DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

MLJ_,\_,‘_,D
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1.1

3.1

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company incorporated on
October 12, 1966 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at Suite 101, Ist Floor, Horizon
Vista, Commercial Plot No. 10, Block - 4, Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi.

The principal activity of the Company is storing, marketing and trading of Liquefied Petroleum
Gas (LPG) throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR).

These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in
which investment in subsidiary is accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. In addition, the Company prepares consolidated financial statements which comprise of
the Company's financial statements and its subsidiary's financial statements i.e. Burshane Auto
Gas (Private) Limited being 100% owned subsidiary. The Company's another subsidiary which
is Burshane Trading (Private) Limited's share capital has not been issued as at the reporting
date.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Company are as under:

Karachi: Purpose:
Plot No. 70, Sector 7-D, Korangi Filling Plant-1, LPG Storage &
Adjacent to Pakistan Refinery Limited, Korangi Creek filling plant
Faisalabad:

Square No. 94, Killa no. 1,2,3,4,5,6 & 7, Tehsil Faisalabad, LPG Storage &
Near Abbaspur Railway Station. filling plant
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017
(the Act); and

= Provisions of and directives 1ssued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Act, have been followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, unless stated otherwise in accounting policy.

3.3 Separate financial statements

These unconsolidated financial statements represent the separate financial statements of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary are
presented separately.

3.4 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani ('Rupees') or 'Rs.',
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

4 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

41 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2024

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Amendments to IAS | 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS
Practice January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
Amendments to IAS 12 'Tncome Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the
requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to pillar
two income taxes January 01, 2023

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard
(LAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any
changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting
policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure
of accounting policies, assisting the Company to provide useful entity-specific accounting
policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in
"Note 5 - Material Accounting Policies" in certain instances in line with the amendments and
concluded that all its accounting policies are material for disclosure.

4.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier
finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments
January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current
liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by
IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the
adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial

statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless stated otherwise.

5.1 Property, plant and equipment
5.1.1 Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if
any, except for freehold land and leasehold land, which are stated at revalued amount.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss using straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset
is allocated over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 8.1. Depreciation on
additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use, while no
depreciation is charged in the month in which the asset is disposed off. The residual values,
useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to
profit or loss as and when incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense in the
profit or loss in the period of disposal.

Revaluations are conducted every three years. When done, a revaluation surplus is recorded in
other comprehensive income (OCI) and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity.
However, the increase is recorded in the profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation
deficit of the same asset previously. A decrease as a result of revaluation 1s recognized in the
profit or loss however, a decrease is recorded in other comprehensive income to the extent of
any credit balance entry in revaluation surplus in respect of same asset.

Right of use assets

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an
estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date of
commencement date to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically
reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease

liability.
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists
of expenditure incurred in respect of tangible assets in the course of their construction and
installation, including financial charges on borrowings, if any, for financing the project until
such projects are completed or become operational. Transfers are made to relevant asset
category as and when assets are available for use.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

5.2 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable
to the asset will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets, where applicable, are amortized from the month when such assets are
available for use on straight line method whereby the cost of an intangible asset is allocated
over its estimated useful life, at the rates given in note 8.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the asset.

a) Software

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable computer software and have probable
economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognized as an intangible asset. Costs include the
purchase cost of software, implementation cost and related overhead cost. Intangible assets
acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses thereon.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its
original specification and useful life is recognized as a capital improvement and added to the
original cost of the software.

b) Goodwill

This represents excess of cost of acquisition over fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the Company at the time of amalgamation by HTPL.

Goodwill on acquisition is not amortised but tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

c) Trademarks

This represents separately acquired trade marks with indefinite useful life. These are stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Carrying amounts of trademarks are subject to
impairment review at each reporting date.

53 Investment in a subsidiary company

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognized and subsequently stated at cost. At subsequent
reporting dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment
losses, if any, and carrying amounts of the investment is adjusted accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

54 Stores and spares

Stores and spares to be consumed in the ordinary course of business are valued at First in First
Out (FIFO) basis and net realizable value (NRV) except for those in transit, if any, which are
stated at cost. Cost comprises of invoice value plus other direct costs incurred thereon.
Provision 1s made for slow moving and obsolete items wherever necessary and is recognized in
profit or loss.

th
i

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost 1s determined
using the weighted average method for both Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) and Low Pressure
Regulators (LPR). Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other
charges incurred thereon.Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

5.6 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for impairment, if any. A
provision for impairment is established under expected credit loss approach. Trade debts and
other receivables are written-off when considered irrecoverable.

5.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash with banks on current, collection, deposit
and saving accounts and short-term running finance. Running finances under mark-up
arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of
financial position.

5.8 Retirement and other service benefits

5.8.1 Defined contribution plan
The Company operates a recognized contributory provident fund for all permanent employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees at the rate of

8.33% per annum of the basic salary for management and non-management employees,
respectively.

5.9 Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments over the
lease term, discounted using the specific incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently lease
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the
rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

5.10 Short term loans and borrowings

Short term loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. They are subsequently stated at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Short tern loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless the Company has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

5.11 Trade and other payables

These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

5.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

5.13 Taxation

5.13.1 Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or Minimum Tax on Turnover or

Alternate Corporate Tax, whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

5.13.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising at the
reporting date between the tax base of asset and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

5.13.3

th
[
h

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset may be utilized. Deferred tax
asset are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recognized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability 1s settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Levy

The amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate is recognized as current
income tax expense for the year in Statement of Profit or Loss. Any excess of expected income
tax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance over the amount designated as current
income tax for the year, is then recognized as a levy.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period
in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which a financial asset 1s
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- it 1s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of a equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that
is initially measured at the transaction price, determined under IFRS 15) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition.
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at FVTPL - The Company has not designated any financial asset as
fair value through profit or loss;

- Financial assets at amortized cost - The Company subsequently measures financial
assets at amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized, modified or impaired;

- Debt instruments at FVTOCI - The Company has not designated any financial asset
at fair value through OCI with or without recycling of cumulative gains and losses;
and upon recognition.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s
unconsolidated statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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Impairment / expected credit losses on financial assets

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the asset’s original effective interest rate.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 180 days
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

The Company uses the IFRS 9's simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life-time
ECL on its trade debt and contract assets, where as for other financial assets loss allowance is
measured at 12 months ECL under general approach of measuring ECL. For trade debts, the
Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to such financial assets and the
economic environment.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s
actual default in future. The expected credit losses are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are generally classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
amortized cost.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company financial liabilities include long-term loan, accrued mark-up on long-term loan,
Lease Liability, cylinder and regulator deposits, trade and other payables and loan from
subsidiary company.




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance
costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and seftle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company is in the business of storing, marketing and trading of Liquefied Petroleum Gas
(LPG) throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR). Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods is transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring
them to the customer.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).
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Sale of LPG and LPR

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of LPG and LPR at LPG pump stations.
Payment 1s generally due at the time of delivery. The revenue from sale of these products is
recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer i.e. on
delivery of products.

The Company recognizes an account receivable when the performance obligations have been
met, recognizing the corresponding revenue. Moreover, the consideration received before
satisfying the performance obligations are recognized as advances from customer.

Others

- Return on saving account is recorded using effective interest rate method.

- Other revenues including recovery of storage and handling charges and rental income
from storage tank are accounted for on accrual basis.

- Income from dividend, if any, is recognized when right to receive dividend is
established.

5.18 Change in accounting policy

During the year, the Company changed its accounting policy of recognizing the portion of
income tax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance, not based on the taxable profits of
the Company, as a Levy under IFRIC-21/IAS-37 instead of the current income tax for the year
under IAS-12.

The management believes that the new policy provides reliable and more relevant information
to the users of the financial statements.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with
International Accounting Standard 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’. There is, however, no material impact on the unconsolidated financial statements
of the prior years.

6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. In the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates
and judgments which are significant to these unconsolidated financial statements:
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
6.1 Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual
values used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of
recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.

6.2 Intangible assets
The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of amortization and useful life used in the
calculation for amortization. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of
assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.

6.3 Taxation
In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Company, the management
considers the applicable laws and the decisions / judgements of appellate authorities on certain

issues in the past. Accordingly, the recognition of deferred tax is also made, taking into account
these judgements and the best estimates of future results of operations of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

T:3
7.4

7.5

7.6

T

L

2024 2023

Note W ——o- (Rupees in '000) —————-

The depreciation charge for the year has

been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 33 7,243 8.024
Administrative expenses 34 11,196 11,307
Distribution and marketing expenses 35 33,774 31,602
52,213 50,933

These are in custody of distributors / customers owing to the nature of business of the
Company. The particulars of these assets have not been disclosed due to a large number of
customers.

The Company possess leasehold lands in Karachi of measuring 5.875 acres. However, the
legal title is in the name of H.A.K.S Trading (Private) Limited (HTPL), the former Holding
Company. The Company is in the process of transferring the legal title in their name.

The Company’s freehold land and leasehold land was revalued on February 15, 2022 by M/s.
K. G. Traders (Private) Limited and on June 14, 2022 by M/s. Luckyhiya Associates (Private)
Limited, an independent valuer, on the basis of their professional assessment of present market
value for similar sized plots in the near vicinity of land. The revaluation has resulted in surplus
for freehold and leasehold land amounting to Rs. 0.30 million and Rs. Nil respectively.

Had the revaluation not been carried out, the carrying value of freehold land and leasehold
land would have been Rs. 5.62 million (2023: Rs. 5.62 million) and Rs. 243.75 million (2023:
Rs. 243.75 mullion), respectively.

The forced sales value as per the revaluation report as of February 15, 2022 and June 14, 2022
1s as follows:

2024 2023
Class of asset (Rupees in '000)
Freehold 16,800 16,800
Leasehold land 569,288 569,288
Particulars of immovable assets of the Company are as follows:
Particulars Usage of property Covered Area
(Square feet)
Freehold land For future business expansion Chak No. 245, Near Railway
Station, Abbaspur, Faisalabad
104,544
Leasehold For future business expansion Commercial - cum- Residential
Land Deh Okewari, Shahrah - e -
Faisal Survey # 47
107,811
ANNUAL REPORT 2024 [[EXl}
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Particulars

Leasehold

Building on
leasehold land

Leasehold

Plant site

Plant site

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Ciondwill

Compater software

Rights under
Supply contracts (noles §.2)
Trodemarks (note 8.3)

2024

Cioodwill

Computer software

Rights under
Supply controcts (notes 8.2)
Trudemarks {note 8.3)

2023

Usage of property Covered Area
(Square feet)
For future business expansion Commercial - cum- Residential
Land Deh Okewari. Shahrah - e -
Faisal Survey # 74
40,293
Plot No. 70, Sector 7-D.Korangi
Filling Plant-1, Adjacent to
Pakistan Refinery Limited, Korangi
Creek. Karachi
9.710
LPG Storage & Filling Plant, Near
Railway Station, Abbaspur,
Faisalabad 6.380
et Book
Cost Ae d Amortisation Value
As at July x As ot June  As ot July  Choarge for the As pt Jung As ut Juny
01,202y Addons  Bispocals o0l 012023 yesr (note 8.5) Rexermnl 30, 2024 30, 2024 Rate of
amortisation
(Rupees in '000)
253,091 - - 2E3.0M1 253,041 Mil
4272 - 4272 4200 T2 - 4272 - 20%
50,130 - - 50,150 2506 10,030 - 12,336 37614 20%
8,600 - 8,600 - - B.600 MNil
6,113 - - 36,113 6,706 102 - 16,808 299 305
MNet Hook
Cost A lated A i WValue
As at July : B Asat Jung - As ot July Churge for the As ol June As ul June
01,2022 Addiions. Dispoxals g3 01,2022 yeor (note 8.5 ) Hhanerssl 30,2023 30,2023 Rute of
amortisation
{Hupees in 000§
253,091 253,091 - - - 253,081 il
4272 4272 4112 88 - 4200 72 0%
3,150 0,130 (30,130) 30,150 42,626 10,030 30,150 2506 47 644 20%
R.600 - - R.600 - - - 8,600 Nil
316,113 50,150 (30,150) 316,113 46,738 10,118 50,150 6,706 309,407

8.1 At June 30, 2024, the cost of fully amortized intangible assets are Rs. 4.27 million (2023: Rs.

3.84 million).

8.2 Impairment review of goodwill and trademarks:

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to Burshane PG (Pakistan) Limited,
which is the cash generating unit (CGU) and also the only operating and reportable segment
for impairment review.

Carrying amount of goodwill

Carrying amount of trademarks

7S ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024 2023
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253,091 253,091
8,600 8,600
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Company performed its annual impairment review in June 2024 and June 2023. The
Company considers the relationship between its recoverable amount and its book value, among
other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. At June 30, 2024, the recoverable
amount of the CGU was above the book value of its net assets, indicating no potential
impairment of goodwill and impairment of the assets of the operating segment. The result of
this impairment test depends to a large extent on Management’s assessment of future cash
inflows and the discount rate used, and is therefore subject to considerable uncertainty. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the 'fair value less cost to sell' and the 'value-in-use'. The
assumptions are assessed at each reporting date and adjusted when appropriate.

The Company uses a Discounted Cash Flow model (DCF) to determine the value in use. Cash
flow projections for the first five years are based on budgeting and forecasting models
endorsed by the Company’s Management. After five years a terminal value calculation is
applied. Within the DCF techniques the terminal value is determined by applying a perpetual
growth rate to the perpetual free cash flows. With respect to the appropriateness of the future
cash inflows used in the calculation management used budgets of five-year plan adopted by
Management and approved by the Board of Directors, as well as by comparison with general
and sector-specific market expectations.

The Company applied a discount rate of 19.75% to the forecasted free cash flow based on a
WACC of the Company. The WACC is an average cost of capital consisting of two parts - cost
of debt and cost of equity.

As the Company’s capital consists of 34.47% debt and 65.53% equity. Calculating the cost of
equity was done by applying the capital asset pricing model (“CAPM”). The assumptions
applied in the CAPM included the following: a risk-free rate of 14% a beta of 0.93 for the
Company and an equity risk premium of 8.54%. The risk-free rate was based on the yield of
ten-year Pakistan Investment Bonds on the Date of Valuation as per the State Bank of
Pakistan. Combining these assumptions yielded a cost of equity of 22.01%

The recoverable amount of CGU as at June 30, 2024 has been determined based on a value-in-
use. The Value in Use of the Company indicated by the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method
approximates to Rs. 868.935 million. The carrying value of net assets (including goodwill) as
of the valuation date is Rs. 469.924 million. As the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying
value of net assets (including goodwill), no impairment in goodwill has been identified as a
result of this review.

The Company tested its trademark "Burshane" as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 for
impairment. Value-in-use of Rs. 243.582 million as at June 30, 2024 of the trademarks has
been calculated using Relief from Royalty Method. This method considers the royalties saved
by owning the intellectual property rather than licensing it. It is commonly used in the
valuation of similar assets and, from a valuation perspective, appears reasonable in this case.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations:

The calculation of value-in-use for both CGU and trademarks, is most sensitive to the
following assumptions:

Sales volume growth

Discount rates

Market share during the forecast period

Royalty rate used for the forecast period

Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period

Sales volume growth

Value in use is sensitive to sales volume growth. Sales volume growth has been assumed to
increase in line with management's expectations of market share.

Discount rates

Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU,
taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets
that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates.

The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company and its
operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The
WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the
expected return on investment by the Company's investors. The cost of debt is based on the
interest-bearing borrowings the Company 1s obliged to service.

Market share during the forecast period

When using industry data for growth rates (as described below), these assumptions are
important because management assesses how the unit’s position, relative to its competitors,
might change over the forecast period. Management expects the Company's market share in the
LPG industry to be stable over the forecast period.

Royalty rate used for the forecast period

The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1% and have been discounted at the
WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.It was concluded that the
carrying amount did not exceed the value-in-use. As a result of this analysis, no impairment
has been identified by the Company against the trademark with a carrying amount of Rs. 8.600
million as at June 30, 2024.

The implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Sales volume growth

Value in use is sensitive to price and cost per ton of local and imported LPG and cost pass-
through. The value in use was tested at various sales volume growth levels. A decline of
3.88% or more in sales volume growth would result in impairment of the CGU.

Discount rate assumptions
A rise in pre-tax discount rate by 4.71% would result in the impairment of the CGU.
Market share during the forecast period assumptions

Management expects the company to maintain its market share based on the expected demand
of the product and the ready supply base it has to service the demand.

Royalty rate assumptions

The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1%, and have been discounted at
the WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.It was concluded that
the carrying value did not exceed the value in use. As a result of this analysis, no impairment
has been identified by the Company against trademark with a carrying amount of Rs. 8.60
million as at June 30, 2024.

Growth rate assumptions

Cashflow beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using 3% growth based on that
used by the management and long term real GDP growth forecast.

8.2  The Company participated in a tender offer by Oil & Gas Development Company Limited
(OGDCL) in respect of purchase of LPG from Kunnar Pasaki Deep - Tando Allahyar Gas
Field District Hyderabad. On successful submission of the highest signature bonus bid of Rs.
50.15 million, the Company has been allotted one lot of LPG of five metric tons per day for
five years from the Kunnar Pasaki Deep - Tando Allahyar.

8.3  This represents consideration paid to OPI Gas (Private) Limited in 2011 for acquisition of
rights and title to "Burshane" trademarks. These trademarks are considered to have an
indefinite useful life, and therefore have not been amortized. Further, no impairment has been
identified in this regard.
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2024 2023
Note W —— (Rupees in '000) ————--
8.4  The amortization for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 33 10,030 10,030
Administrative expenses 34 72 88
10,102 10,118
9 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
Investment in a subsidiary company - at cost
Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited 9.1 50,000 50,000

9.1 This represents investment in Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (BAL), a company
incorporated in Pakistan. The Company owns 4.999,997 (2023: 4,999,997) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each representing 99.99% of the share capital as at the reporting date.

At the reporting date, the subsidiary company has not yet started its business operations,
however, the net assets of the subsidiary company at year end amounted to Rs. 49.85 million
(2023: Rs. 49.98 million). Investment in the subsidiary has been made in accordance with the
provisions of the Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules promulgated for this

purpose.

9.2  Burshane Trading (Private) Limited (BTPL) is also the subsidiary of Burshane LPG (Pakistan)
Limited which was incorporated on October 13, 2014 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(Companies Act, 2017). No share capital has been issued and no transactions were undertaken
by BTPL during the year. At the reporting date BTPL is having 'inactive' status in the SECP
records.

10 STORES AND SPARES

Stores 6,254 4,795

Spares parts 1,104 846
7,358 5,641

Provision for obsolete items (1,320) (1,320)
6,038 4,321

_—

11 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) 11.1 7,733 25,814
Low Pressure Regulators (LPR) 464 534
8,197 26,348

_—

11.1  This includes stock amounting to Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 3.07 million) held with the following
parties under hospitality arrangements:
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2024 2023

Note = ——o (Rupees in '000) -—————--

OPI Jamber Plant - 41
Ravi Sahiwal - 17
Sadiq Gas Company - 1,875
Lite Gas Plant = 1,002
Terra Energy (Private) Limited = 89
Baba Fareed Gas - 9
Bashir Gas - 13
Ali Akbar Energy - 21
- 3.067

11.2 At June 30, 2024, stock of LPG held on behalf of third parties amounted to Rs. Nil (2023: Rs.
4.51 million).

12 TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured - considered good

Trade debtors 090,214 107.835
Allowance for expected credit losses 12.1 (22,492) (5,988)
76,722 101,847

12.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balance as at July 01 5,988 4,617
Allowance for the year 37 16,504 1.371
Balance as at June 30 22,492 5.988

12.2  Ageing analysis of these trade debts as at the reporting date is as follows:

Up to 1 month 41,448 60,173
1 to 6 months 29,452 25,907
More than 6 months 28,314 21,755

99,214 107,835

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - secured - considered good

Staff loan 1,231 150
Advances to (unsecured - considered good)

Chief executive officer 13.1 &13.2 - 2.555

Contractors and suppliers 18,515 33,465

18,515 36,020

19,746 36,170

13.1  This amount pertains to amount paid for travelling to Chief executive officer.
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13.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from Chief executive officer against advance from
travelling at the end of any month was Rs. 2.68 million (2023: Rs. 2.56 million).

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in '000)

14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposits 14.1 995 19,621
Prepayments 8,772 5,928
Other receivables 14.2 19,742 17,980

29,509 43,529

14.1 This represents short term deposits in the normal course of business and does not carry any
interest or mark-up.

14.2 Other receivables

OPI Gas (Private) Limited 14.3 3,642 3,642
Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited 14.4 9,000 9,000
Others 14.5 &14.6 12,205 10,443
24,847 23,085
Credit loss allowance (5,105) (5,105)
19,742 17.980

14.3 This represents receivable against reimbursement of expenses incurred for rebranding
activities, which has not been acknowledged by the counter party, thus fully provided.

14.4 This represents amount receivable from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited (formerly
Darian International (Private) Limited),an associate company, amounting to Rs. 9 million
(2023: Rs. 9 million), as consideration against use of the Company's name under an
arrangement entered in the year 2016.

14.5  This includes receivable against cylinder deposits of Rs. 3.72 million (2023: Rs. 3.36 million).

14.6  This includes receivable from Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited, a subsidiary, amounting
to Rs. 0.82 million (2023: Rs. 0.60 million).

14.6.1 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month are as follows:
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2024 2023
Note W ——— (Rupees in '000) ————--
Other related party
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund 760 3,151
Subsidiary Company
Burshane Autogas (Private) Limited 821 596
Associated Company
Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited 9,000 9,000
10,581 12,747

14.6.2 The ageing analysis of receivable balances due from a subsidiary ,an associate company and
other related party are as follows:

More than 6 months - -
More than 12 months 9,000 9,000
9,000 9,000
15 TAXATION - NET
Advance tax 15,859 36,790
Provision for taxation (6,084) (8,810)
9,775 27,980
Income tax refundable 152,637 124,657
162,412 152,637
16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 188 78
Cash at banks
saving accounts 16.1 2,129 5,046
current accounts 1,298 15,030
3,427 20,076
3,615 20,154

16.1 These carry profit at rates range from 7.51% to 20.50% per annum (2023: 6.83% to 22.55%
per annum). These balances are held in accounts maintained under conventional banking.

17 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares)—— (Rupees in '000) ————---

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
90,000,000 90,000,000 each 900,000 900,000
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18  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Number of ordinary

shares of Rs. 10/- each 2024 2023
2024 2023 e (Rupees in '000) -—————--
19.881,766 19,881,766 Fully paid in cash 198.817 198,817
Fully paid for consideration
76.820 76.820 other than cash 768 768
Fully paid bonus shares
2,530,304 2,530,304 25,303 25,303
22.488.890 22,488,890 224 888 224,888

18.1 As a result of arrangement (the Scheme), the authorized share capital of the Company
enhanced to Rs. 900 million divided into 90 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. Further,
pursuant to the effects of amalgamation, the paid-up share capital of the Company reduced by
151,154 shares.

18.2 The Company has completed legal formalities for cancellation of 151,154 shares and issued of
new share certificates, which were appearing in the name of HTPL to the shareholders of
HTPL (former Holding Company) in accordance with the Scheme. Post completion of legal
formalities, Chief Executive, holds 12,327,129 [2023: 54.81% (2023: 54.81%)] ordinary
shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each and other directors holds 2,000 [2023: 0.01% (2023:
1.39%)] ordinary shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each.

18.3 At June 30, 2024, institutions held 14.21% (2023: 14.21%) and individuals and others held the
balance of 30.97% (2023: 29.59%) voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and
block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.

2024 2023
Note -—-———— (Rupees in '000)
19 CAPITAL RESERVES
Revaluation surplus of property 19.1 336,715 336,715
Other reserves

Reserve for Amalgamation 153,458 153,458

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of
retirement and other service benefits (30,177) (30,177)
306,538 306.538

19.1 The revaluation surplus on property is a capital reserve, and is not available for distribution to
the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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2024 2023
Note: oo (Rupees in '000) -
20 REVENUE RESERVE
General reserve 90,000 90,000
Accumulated loss (304.,960) (231,283)
(214,960) (141,283)
21 LONG-TERM LOAN
Secured :
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) 21.1 101,875 116,677
Current portion of long-term loan (33,165) (24.948)
68,710 91,729

21.1 In year 2015, long-term finance obtained, under conventional banking terms, by HTPL had
been transferred to the Company at the time of amalgamation (the scheme). This loan was
obtained as a demand finance facility under the agreement dated April 08, 2013 from National
Bank of Pakistan (NBP) and was repayable in 9 semi-annual installments of Rs. 44.44 million
latest by April 01, 2018 with a grace period of six months. The loan carried mark-up at rate of
6 months KIBOR plus 2.5% to 6% per annum. This loan was secured by way of mortgage on
leasehold land and charge on the Company’s present and future current and fixed assets as
well as personal guarantee of Chief executive officer (CEO) of the Company. In previous
years, the Company negotiated several offer letters from NBP.

On September 20, 2021, the Company received a proposal via offer letter No.
NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2021/770 supplemented by offer letter for the restructuring /
rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2022/08 dated January 06, 2022 and
addendum to offer letter for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme dated June 03, 2022 for
the restructuring of loan from NBP which was accepted on June 08, 2022 by the Company's
management.

However, the competent authority of NBP approved the acceptance of this offer by the
Company and executed restructuring of long-term loan amounting to Rs. 254.44 million and
its related accrued mark-up amounting to Rs. 119.39 million into three different facilities with
effect from June 09, 2022, as mentioned below:

In respect Demand Finance-I (DF-I) facility:
- The part of long-term loan amounted to Rs. 100.44 million restructured as DF-L.
- Upfront payment of Rs. 25.44 million to be made immediately.
- Remaining balance of Rs. 75 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting
from September 30, 2022 with a grace period of 1 year.
- The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2%, which will also be
payable during the grace period.
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In respect Demand Finance-II (DF-II) facility:

Frozen accrued mark-up amounted to Rs. 119.39 million on long-term loan restructured
as DF-II.

The Company to pay an amount of Rs. 113.82 million towards frozen mark-up.

Upfront payment of Rs. 18.52 million (including accrued mark-up amounting to Rs. 7.90
million for the period from January 01, 2022 to June 09, 2022) to be made immediately.

Remaining amount of Rs. 95.29 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting
from September 30, 2022.
The facility carries no mark-up.

In respect Running Finance facility:

Another part of long term loan amounted to Rs. 154 million restructured as running
finance.
The facility carries mark-up of 3 month KIBOR + 1.75%.

The restructuring / rehabilitation scheme of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited has resulted in a
loan restructuring gain, on original long term loan and accrued mark-up thereon, of Rs. 37.76
million on effective date of loan restructuring i.e. June 09, 2022 as described below:

Carrying amount of long term loan Note Rupees in '000'
before restructuring

Long-term loan 21 254,439
Accrued mark-up 30 119,392
373,831
Loan restructured:

Long-term loan 21 138,115
Short-term borrowings (running finance) 28 154,000
292,115
81,716

Less: upfront payment on account of
long-term loan and frozen mark-up 43,960
Gain on loan restructuring 36 37,756

In addition, this restructuring arrangements are secured by way of the following;
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- 1% registered mortgage of land and building of both project locations i.e. Karachi and
Faisalabad mentioned in latest statement of financial position , to be created as per the
original offer letter by NBP for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme WNo.
NBP/ARG/ARW-S/BLPL/2021/770 dated September 20, 2021. However, as per the
revised offer letter by NBP for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme No.
NBP/ARG/ARW-S/BLPL/2022/08 dated January 06, 2022, the existing collateral is
replaced by 1% Registered mortgage and 99% equitable mortgage of Freehold Land (i.e.
Chak no. 245 Near Railway Station, Abbaspur, Faisalabad, forced sales value of the said
location is Rs. 50 million dated December 02, 2021);

- 1% registered mortgage and balance by way of equitable mortgage on Company's owned
following properties situated in Karachi by Rs. 660 million registered at SECP;

- residential / commercial land bearing No. 74 measuring 37 Ghuntas situated at Deh
Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya Associates (Pvt).
Ltd having market value of Rs. 89.63 million and forced sales value amounting to Rs.
71.71 million dated June 30, 2020;

- residential / commercial land bearing No. 47 measuring 2 Acre and 19 Ghuntas situated at
Deh Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya Associates
(Pvt). Ltd having market value of Rs. 239.83 million and forced sales value amounting to
Rs. 191.86 million dated June 30, 2020;

- personal guarantee of CEO of the Company;

- undertaking for routing all sales through Company's account with NBP cash management
system;

- assignment of long term deposits lying with various refineries (on best efforts);

- replacement of 16,834,434 shares of HAKS Trading (Pvt). Ltd (held by NBP) with shares
of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited to be completed in three months under the
supervision / guidance of NBP legal division as a result of name change of the
organization. Further, after the conversion of said shares, shares of Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) Limited to be held with NBP.

There are certain other terms and conditions attached in the aforementioned letter dated
September 20, 2021 in respect of restructuring / rehabilitation of loan which the Company
have to comply with, some of which are mentioned below:

- Adjusted Debt to EBITDA not to exceed 4 times.
- Debt Service Coverage Ratio not to fall below 1.1.

- No new dividend to be paid / announced during rescheduling period or prior approval
from NBP to be obtained.

- NBP’s prior approval to be obtained for the payment of unclaimed dividend amount to the
sponsoring directors.
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22

22.1

22.3

23

LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance as at July 01
Addition

Disposal

Interest expense

Payments made during the year

Current portion of lease liabilities
Balance as at June 30

2024 2023
Note W —— (Rupees in '000) ————--
22.1 20,055 28.175
19,187 2,016
- (2,922)
7,046 4,575
46,288 31,844
(12,878) (11,789)
33.410 20,055
(10,046) (4.166)
23,364 15,889

For determining, lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its
incremental borrowing rate 28.48% per annum (2023: 22.25% per annum).

This represents finance lease entered into with a leasing company for vehicles. Total lease
rentals due under lease agreement aggregated to Rs. 22.12 million (2023: Rs. 25.66 million)
and are payable in equal monthly installments latest by September 2028. Taxes, charges,

demands and levies, repair and maintenance are to be borne by the Company.

Maturity analysis-contractual cash flow

Less than one year
One to five year
Total lease liability

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization
Post employment benefits

Deductible temporary differences
Lease liabilities
Minimum turnover tax
Provisions

Deferred tax asset not recognized
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10,046 4,166
23,364 15,889
33,410 20,055
17,541 20,856

: 122
(9,689) (5.816)
(6,084) (8,902)
(8,386) (3,600)
(6,618) 2,660

6,618 :
< 2,660

_—
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23.1 Deferred tax asset have not been recognized in respect of deductible temporary differences,
because the Company is subject to minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance (ITO), 2001.

24 CYLINDER AND REGULATOR DEPOSITS

This represents non-interest bearing deposits which are refundable on termination of
distributorship agreements and / or return of cylinders and ancillary equipment as per the
Company policy.

25 LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

25.1 This represents loan received from Burshane Autogas (Private) Limited, having a period of 12
months and could be extended for a period as voluntary agreed. This loan is interest free, and
received to meet the working capital requirement of the company .These loans are unsecured
and are considered good.

Clause no. 4 is being amended and affective as follows:

It is mutually agreed that the entire amount of loan will be repaid within the next 12 months or
any extended period, if so mutually agreed.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000)
26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 14,145 54,767
Accrued liabilities 2,987 3,768
Advances from distributors / customers - unsecured 17,704 16,770
Workers' Welfare Fund 3,017 3,017
Withholding tax payable 5,487 5,102
Sales tax payable 2,590 249
Others 18,865 20,042
64,795 103,715
27 SHORT-TERM LOAN
Related party - unsecured
Loan from Burshane Petroleum (Private)
Limited 2741 - .
Loan from Director 27.1 13,388 -
13,388 -
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27.1 The loan was obtained from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited and Director amounting to
Rs. 31.50 million (2023: Rs. 155 million) and Rs. 97.32 million (2023: 17) for purchase of
LPG. During the reporting period, loan amounting to Rs. 106.91 million (2023: Rs. 217
million) was repaid and Rs. 8.51 million (2023: Nil) was adjusted against the sale of vehicle
during the year. Loan carries rate of return of KIBOR + 2%.

28 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The Company has an arrangement for running finance facility under mark-up arrangement
from National Bank of Pakistan ( NBP) amounting to Rs. 154 million along with an import LC
sight.

The rate of mark-up on running finance facility is 3 months KIBOR + 1.75% per annum. The
arrangements are secured by way of mortgage on leasehold land and charge on the Company’s
present and future current and fixed assets as well as personal guarantee of Chief Executive of

the Company.
2024 2023
Note -——-———- (Rupees in '000)
29 UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS
Opening balance 83,050 83,050
Dividend paid during the year - -
Closing balance 83,050 83,050

29.1 These includes an amount of Rs. 59.08 million payable to the directors of the Company (2023:
Rs. 60.59 million payable to the beneficial owners of HTPL). However, NBP’s prior approval
to be obtained for the payment of unclaimed dividend amount to the sponsoring directors as
disclosed in note 21.

30 ACCRUED MARK-UP

Mark-up accrued on:

Short-term loan 30.1 2,657 .

Long-term loan 6,319 3,801

Short-term borrowings 17,977 8,085
26,953 11,886

30.1 This represents accrued mark-up payable to Director.
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31  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

31.1 Contingencies

31.1.1 An inspection order dated August 04, 2020 under Section 221 of Companies Act, 2017 was
issued by SECP against complaint received by the Commission wherein it was alleged that the
CEO and Director Finance of the Company are involved in financial urregularities of the
Companies Act, 2017, which include advance made to Roots International Brands Private
Limited (RIBS), an associate company, and that the bank account was being used for illegal
activities by CEO and Company’s Director Finance who appears to have concealed the
existence of such financial transactions.

On the conclusion of inspection, a report was issued on October 23, 2020 mentioning
cognizance of offences under sections 204, 199(1), 199(2), 183(2), CEO and Director Finance
of the Company, during the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020 and suggested that they are
liable with regard to all the above non-compliances as the Board of Directors did not discuss
or approve transactions with RIBS until June 26, 2020 and the predecessor auditors are liable
for proceedings to be initiated under section 249 read with section 253 of the Act as they failed
to highlight lack of disclosure of transactions with RIBS in notes to these unconsolidated
financial statements for year ended June 30, 2019 especially in related parties note as required
under TAS 24. The Auditor also failed to highlight the unsecured interest free loans extended
without any agreement to a related party 1.e., RIBS before June 03, 2019.

The Company has provided the comments on findings to SECP, that the non-compliance was
not intentional but was omission by mistake. The Company had advanced certain amount to
RIBS, However, the Company has received all the monies back with mark up and therefore
there is no financial loss to the Company. The Board has subsequently ratified all these
transactions with RIBS, and therefore to an extent the non-compliance has been addressed. It
was merely an oversight of SECP compliance regulations. It has further been resolved in the
Board that extra care shall be taken in future to ensure that non-compliance should not takes
place.

The SECP has imposed penalty of Rs. 2 million on October 11, 2022. However, the
management has initiated an appeal in the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) in respect of
the matter. The case is still pending in SHC.
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31.1.2 The Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) has been filed by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at
Karachi on December 18, 2019. During the year ended June 30, 2018, tax authorities issued
Order dated May 25, 2018 and charged sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990,
raising sales tax demand and imposing penalties aggregating to Rs. 133.11 million and also
default surcharge for tax periods from July 2014 to March 2018. Against the said Order, the
Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals—I), Karachi who vide Order dated July
03, 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales tax of Rs. 65.57 million and reduced the
imposition of penalties from Rs. 67.54 million to Rs. 0.50 million only. However, the liability
on account of default surcharge was maintained.

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 1.34 million and maintained the amount of
penalty Rs. 0.50 million. The Company has paid the reduced amount of default surcharge and
penalty without pursuing the matter before the High Court.

31.1.3 The captioned Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) is filed by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at
Karachi. On September 28, 2018, tax authorities levied sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax
Act, 1990, raising sales tax demand along with the levy of penalty aggregating to Rs. 7.90
million for tax periods from April 2018 to May 2018.

Against the Order, the Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals—I), Karachi, who
vide Order dated October 31, 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales tax of Rs. 7.67
million. However, the liability on account of default surcharge and penalty was maintained.

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 0.16 million and maintained the amount of
penalty Rs. 0.23 million. The Company has paid the reduced amount of default surcharge and
penalty without pursuing the matter further.

31.1.4 The Company has filed Special Federal Excise Duty (FED) Ref. Application before the
Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) against the Appellate order dated April 02, 2012 of the
Appellate Tribunal IR. The tax authorities at Large Taxpayers Office established a demand
towards FED on the payment of license fee paid/payable by the Company in relation with the
software / IT services acquired from the non-resident parent company under the tariff heading
“franchise service” as per First Schedule to Federal Excise Act, 2005. At that time, Burshane
LPG (Pakistan) Limited was a subsidiary of Shell Group, operating under the name of Shell
LPG Pakistan Limited.
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The scope of services under the head ‘franchise services’ was not clear when the Federal
Excise Act was promulgated in the year 2005 and then the jurisdictional issues also made the
matter more complicated when the franchise services were subjected to Provincial sales tax by
promulgation of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 effective July 01, 2011.

Software licensing does not fall under the service classification “franchise services” and this
aspect has been settled at the Appellate Tribunal level in reported judgments, also. Hence, the
Company has a strong arguable case to defend its position that the impugned demand of FED
may not be warranted. However ,the Company has filed an appeal to the SHC and the matter is
still pending.

31.1.5 A complaint was filed by the Directorate of Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) (I
& I-1R) on August 31, 2020, against the Company for alleged Tax evasion of approximately
Rs. 1.78 billion, with Special Court for Customs, Taxation and (Anti-Smuggling). Based on
this complaint the court passed 2 orders against the Company and some of its directors. The
orders were pertaining to freezing of the Company’s 9 bank accounts for 90 days and issuance
of non bailable arrest warrants of its certain Directors. The Company immediately obtained
Protective Bail from the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) and subsequently from the
Special Court which was later confirmed.

The Company also filed a Constitutional Petition with Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC)
against the order of the Special Court for freezing of 9 bank accounts. All banks have removed
the freeze on the Company’s accounts on expiry of 90 days.

The Company had received notices under section 177(1) of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO),
2001 regarding audit for tax years 2018 and 2019. The Company has replied and submitted
relevant details and documents timely through various letters to FBR. The Company has
received further notices under section 122(5A) of the ITO, 2001 demanded income tax liability
amounting to Rs. 609.79 million and Rs. 617.30 million for the tax year 2018 and 2019. An
appeal was preferred before the Commissioner Inland Revenue — Appeal (CIR-A) whereby the
CIR-A remanded back the case to the concerned Officer Inland Revenue (OIR). Thereafter,
remanded back proceeding was initiated by the learned OIR, that culminated on an order under
section 124/129 of the Ordinance, whereby the demanded tax liability of Rs. 172.05 million
and Rs. 87.75 million for the tax year 2018 and 2019 was created. Being aggrieved, the
taxpayer again preferred an appeal before CIR-A, that is currently pending.

31.1.6 The Director of Intelligence and Investigation, Inland Revenue had appeared on TV in Kamran
Khan's News show on September 23, 2020, and there he discussed the case in a manner
whereby Company's reputation was damaged. He fried to conduct a media trial of the
Company and its Directors. Additionally, the Director of Intelligence and Investigation, Inland
Revenue also disclosed our tax and assets details, hence breached privacy and confidentiality
laws.
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The Company has filed a law suit in Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) for damages against
the Director General, the Director of South Region and the Deputy Director, (the Complainant)
of the Directorate of 1&I, Inland Revenue for a sum of Rs. 1 billion. Nevertheless, the 1ssue
remained pending in Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC).

31.1.7 On July 31, 2015, the Company received a show cause notice under Punjab Rented Premises
Act, 2009, by the landlords of the property measuring 51-Kanals-03-Marlas, or thereabouts
bearing Square No. 94, Killa no. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 & 7, tehsil Faisalabad, near Abbaspur railway
station. The Company uses this land for LPG storage and filing plant of Faisalabad. The
landlords filed an ejectment petition against the Company and the Company has filed
defending argument in the rent tribunal Faisalabad and case is under hearing stage.

31.1.8 For the tax year 2016, a notice dated June 25, 2018 was issued to the Company to provide
certain information / details for audit proceedings. The notice was duly complied.

Show cause notice dated June 13, 2019 was issued to amend assessment u/s 122(9) read with
section 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which was duly responded on all the points.
Subsequently, order dated August 29, 2019 passed by the DCIR raising null tax demand due to
applicability of minimum tax.

The Company filed appeal to the Commissioner (Appeals) against the aforesaid order dated
August 29, 2019. The said appeal was heard and order passed wherein the Commissioner
(Appeals) has confirmed the certain additions made by the DCIR, whereas, he has annulled /
deleted certain additions i.e. (rent, advertising expenses and financial charges - profit on debt)
as such. Further, the Commissioner (Appeals) has also directed the Officer to allow credit of
actual taxes paid of Rs. 23.45 million subject to due verification. Appeal effect under section
124 to be filed.

Monitoring of WHT was conducted by the DCIR by issuing a notice under section 176 dated
March 28, 2018 which was duly responded. Thereafter, a show-cause notice dated February
13, 2019 was issued under section 161(1A) confronting on non-withholding of taxes on
certain payments. Response was duly filed and accordingly order dated March 15, 2019 was
passed under section 161 / 205 by the ACIR wherein the total tax demand of Rs. 2.05 million
was raised which comprised the defaulted amount of Rs. 1.552 million; default surcharge of
Rs. 0.49 million.

Against the order, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals-I) which
was heard and appellate order passed dated May 15, 2019 wherein Commissioner (Appeals-I)
remanded back the order of DCIR with the directions to verify supporting documentary
evidences in respect of expenses claimed to be furnished by appellant company within seven
days time. Following the underlying directions of Commissioner (Appeals-I) the Company has
filed the details of expenses / payments in question vide our letter no. KT-AA-3707 dated May
22,2019 to the DCIR for onward proceedings.
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31.2

32

32.1

33

The Company filed application dated March 25, 2021 for approval for revision of return under
clause (ba) of sub-section 6 of section 114 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for charging
minimum tax u/s 113 at the rate 0.2% instead of 1%. The Commissioner Audit vide his letter
dated May 07, 2021 rejected the request of the Company for granting permission for revision
of return. The Company has filed a petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) with
prayer to direct the Commissioner Inland Revenue to allow revision of return of income for the
tax year 2016.Nonetheless.no adverse order has been passed and the matter is still pending in
the SHC.

2023 2022
Note (Rupees in '000)
Commitments
Post-dated cheques 22,122 25,660
SALES - NET
Gross sales
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) 2,728,960 4,039,886
Low pressure regulators (LPR) 238 550
2,729,198 4,040,436
Sales return (13,121) (4,907)
Sales tax (338,575) (501,923)
2,377,502 3,533,606

Revenue recognized from amounts included in advance from customers at the beginning of the
year amounted to Rs. 12.76 million (2023: Rs. 5.92 million).

COST OF SALES
Salaries, wages and other employees benefit:  33.1 27,799 29,963
Cost of low pressure regulators sold 70 182
Stores and spares consumed 33.3 2,632 1,284
Repairs and maintenance 2,629 4,587
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 2,222 1,690
Depreciation 7.2 7,243 8,024
Amortization 8.4 10,030 10,030
Rent, rates and utilities 19,862 21.521
Communication charges 763 875
Printing and stationery 374 170
Legal and professional charges 2,741 384
Insurance 4,958 3,914
Signature bonus 3,718 17,165
Security 4,563 4,208
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33.1

33.2

333
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2024 2023
Note W —— (Rupees in '000) ————--
Sundry expenses 491 1,461
Manufacturing cost 90,095 105.458
Opening stock 25,814 44.370
Purchases 332 2,131,382 3,258,493
Closing stock 11 (7,733) (25,814)
2,149,463 3,277,049
2,239,558 3,382,507

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 0.62 million) in respect of retirement and
other service benefits.

This include amount of Rs. 202.47 million (2023: Rs 247.87 million) related to purchases of
LPG from Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) and amount of Rs. 5.96 million (2023:Rs
6.54 million) paid to ADEPT (Private) Limited (APL) for purchasing rights of LPG quota.

On May 13, 2019, the Company entered in to agreement with Byco Petroleum Pakistan
Limited (BPPL) for purchase of LPG through an arrangement. On June 6, 2019, the Company
entered into a joint venture agreement (the Agreement) with APL being engaged in oil and gas
related business with a quota of 35 MT per day by BPPL. As per the agreement, APL
consented and assigned LPG quota to the Company for marketing and distribution of LPG
including management of operations, maintaining of books of accounts and records under the
agreement, The Board discussed these arrangements and the agreement and on September 19,
2019, the Board approved the agreement.

As per the revised agreement effective from August 16, 2020, APL is entitled to a fixed profit
amounting to Rs. 4,500 (2023: Rs. 4,500) for each MT net of all taxes of LPG procured
through BPPL while any other profit or loss from marketing and distribution of that LPG is
accrued to the Company.

Stores and spares consumed

Opening stock 4321 4,673

Purchases 4,349 932
8,670 5,605

Closing stock 10 (6,038) (4,321)
2,632 1,284
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2024 2023
Note  —— (Rupees in '000) —————--
34 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other employees 34.1 66,286 69,796
Depreciation 7.2 11,196 11,307
Amortization 8.4 72 88
Repairs and maintenance 2,954 1,823
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 6,260 5,517
Rent, rates and utilities 3,352 1,929
Communication charges 1,651 2,347
Printing and stationery 924 1,059
Legal and professional charges 11,978 16,939
Insurance 3,361 1.804
Advertisement and publicity - 285
Security 2,677 2,043
Donation 34.2 4,787 500
Sundry expenses 2,149 591
117,647 116,028

34.1 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 4.39 million) in respect of retirement and
other service benefits.

34.2 This includes Rs. 4.77 million (2023: Nil) paid to Baitussalam Welfare Trust.

35 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other employees 35.1 12,830 13,798
Depreciation 7.2 33,774 31,602
Repairs and maintenance 106 776
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 1,005 393
Rent, rates and taxes 1,259 784
Communication charges 339 641
Printing and stationery 68 101
Insurance 381 347
Hospitality charges 3,209 8,705
Freight and octroi 10,860 7,938
Advertisement and publicity - 339
Security 128 165
Sundry expenses 238 291

64,197 65,880

35.1 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 0.38 million) in respect of retirement and
other service benefits.
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36 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts
Income from non-financial assets
Rental income from storage tanks-cylinders
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Liability for cylinder deposits and
regulator deposits written back
Old liabilities written back
Recoveries against cylinder replacement
Hospitality income
Storage income
Others

36.1 This represents profit on bank accounts under conventional banking relationship.

2024 2023

Note W —— (Rupees in '000) ————--
36.1 726 1,017
1,731 1,192
13,349 1.841
36.2 26,122 22,131
457 3,018
2,367 810
4,898 402

6,988 -

9,036 -
65,674 30,411

36.2 This represents cylinder and regulator deposits pertaining to cylinders issued for 10 years and
above, which relates to mactive distributors / customers who are not in business with the

Company.
37 OTHER EXPENSES
Directors' fees

Auditors' remuneration
Credit loss allowance

37.1 Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit

Half yearly review

Other certification

Out of pocket expenses and others

mANNUAL REPORT 2024

3,300 3,050
37.1 2,399 2,522
12.1 16,504 1,371
22,203 6,943

1,320 1.200

600 600

320 490

159 232

2,399 2,522
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Note AL

38 FINANCIAL COSTS

Mark-up / interest on:

2024 2023

Short-term loan 38.1 4,866 2,219
Short-term borrowings 36,991 27,732
Long-term loan 20,572 21411
Lease liabilities 7.046 4.575
Workers' Profits Participation Fund - 38
69,475 55,975

Bank charges and commission 349 832
69,824 56,807

38.1 This includes mark-up of Rs. 0.55 million (2023: 2.03 million) and Rs. 4.31 million (2023:
0.19 muillion) at KIBOR+2% on short-term loan obtained from Director and Burshane
Petroleum (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 31.50 million (2023: Rs. 155 million) and Rs.
97.32 million (2023: 17 million).

39 MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL

This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance
(ITO), 2001, representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 as disclosed in
note 5.18.

40 TAXATION

Deferred 2,660 6.807

40.1 The numerical reconciliation between average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been
presented during the year in these unconsolidated financial statements as the total tax liability
of the Company during the year is covered under section 113 Minimum Tax of ITO, 2001 as it
is a higher of Corporate rate tax and Alternate Corporate Tax.

41 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss for the year after taxation (73,677) (66,151)

—————— (Number in '000)
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding 22,489 22,489
2024 2023
-—-————- (Rupees) ~—————-
Loss per share - basic and diluted (3.28) (2.94)
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42 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for
remunerations, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the

Company were as follows:

2024 2023
Cluei" Directors Executives Total . Clue!' Directors Executives Total
Executive Executive
(Rupees in '000) {Rupees in '000)
Managerial remuneration 27.099 10,587 19,337 57,023 27,324 10,587 18,905 56,816
Meeting fees 50 250 650 930 150 250 600 1,000
Bonus 2,252 882 1,589 4723 3416 1,323 2,384 7,123
Retirement benefits 1,800 - 1,328 3,128 1,960 - 1,410 3,370
Travelling and conveyance - - 39 39 - - 63 63
Medical allowance - 100 808 908 . 100 467 567
Total 31,201 11,819 23,751 66,771 32.850 12,260 23,829 68,939
Number of persons 1 | 9 11 1 1 8 10

42.1 In addition, the Chief Executive, the Directors and certain Executives were also provided with

free use of the Company's maintained cars.

422 Fee amounting to Rs. 2.15 million (2023: Rs. 1.80 million) was paid to nine (2023: seven) non-

executive directors for attending Board meetings during the year.
43 RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

43.1 Provident Fund

The following information is based upon the latest audited unconsolidated financial statements

of the provident fund as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023:

2024 2023

Size of the fund - total assets 10,053
Fair value of investments 9,899
Cost of Investments 9,885
Percentage of investments 98.33%
2024 2023

Rupees o Rupees

. Yo .

in '000 in '000
Bank deposits 6,301 64 2,025
Mutual funds 3,598 36 3,874

9.899 5,899

6,006

5,899

5,156
85.85%

%

Investments out of the staff provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions

of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

mANNUAL REPORT 2024

XL




0€s
S80°€
€61
€6l
000°L1
000°L1

920°C
970°C
0007002
000°SS1

006C
00¥'C
v€6'6
(8729
SLT'E
SIL

69¢

1Tl
969°|
ClIEy
¥15°8
THL'TL
0TE'L6
7168

£gs
£ss
00S°1€
00S°1€

STc

==(000, u1 s3adny)-—-

£T07

a0t

QOUBAPE JSUIETE PAAI2d2I JUNOUY
sasuadxa 1surede adueApy

UBO] WLId] J1oys uo pred 1sa101u]

UBO] WiId} LoYs uo asuadxa 15a191u]
ajes jsutese pajsn(pe ueo| uLR} LOYS
« pred - ueo| w2y 1oyg

« PRAIS0RI - UBO| UL} LIOYS

2]91aA JO aes

ueo| uLe] 11oys uo pred 1sa19)u]
uRO[ WL} Hoys uo asuadxa 1sarau|
« pred - ueoj uLd) 110YS

+ PAATOIAI - UBO| ULID] 1IOYS

UBO[ JSUIESE PAAI2IDI JUNOUIY

papiaoid ueo]

pred uonnguuo)

UBO[ JSUTESE PAAI2JAI JUNOLLY

pied s117auaq $S20X2 JO JUNOJIIE UO PIAISITY
pred sjjouag

Auredwod Areipisqns Jo Jjeyaq uo pied asuadxyg

suonoesue. jo sanjeN

10)03.41(]

[paury (21eAL]) [BUOHIBWIAU] UBLIB(] A[JOULIOA]
pary (2IBALLJ) WNA[OISJ duUeysing
satueduro) pajeossy

pun.j JudpIACI pajmury (UBISD{E]) DJT Queysing
pun, uoisudd Jjeis uawwadeury pajnur (UrISRd) DA dueysing
suepd voPNQLYUO0I / JPIUIQ JUIWDINAI JJBIS

pajuny (1eALL]) SBO) 0)NY JUBYSIng
Auedwo) Areipisqng

disuoneppa jo anje
sapaed paje[aa Yim suonIBSuRL ],

'SMO][0] SEB JIP ‘SJUDLWIRIL)S [BIOUBUL] PAJEPIOSHOIUN

IS Ul QIYMIS[D PASO[ISIP UIQ IABY YoIgm 250yl uer 1o ‘sanued pajejar yim aiep Suipodar oyl e sadue[eq pue IBdk d) FuLmp SUONOBSURL) JO S[TRIA(

‘Aurdwio) ay] Jo s1012311(7 JO

pieog i Aq paaoidde Ajnp suua) paaide 1e ojul paiajua are sarued pajejed YIm SUONIBSURE J0[BW [[V *[oUUOSID ] JUdWATRURIA] A 1910 pue S1010311(] ‘santed
parejai 1aypo ‘satueduiod pajerdosse ‘suejd wonnqLIuod ; jyauaq juswaial jeis ‘Auedwoo Aeipisqns ‘Auedwos Suipjoy Jouiiof ay) apnjoul saued pajejal ay |,

SHLLYVd dILVTIY HLIAA SNOLLDVSNVYLL

143

44

$70T ‘0€ ANNC AAANT AVAA dHL 04
SINANWALVLS TVIDONVNIA AALVAI'TOSNODNN AHL OL SALON

109

ANNUAL REPORT 2024




0¢l1

000°6

968
000°0§
000°0S

6es't

780°6S

L9S

£9
0LE'E
€CIL
918°9¢
898
09

LLOT

000°6

1T8
000°0S
000°0S

9L9°C
LS9T
8LS'HT
780°6S

ueo] uLL-uoys

QUBYSING,, QWEU JO asn JSUreSe 3[qeAIY

Ll

sasuadxa jsurede o[qrAIdaY
Kmeipisqns 03 ajqeAed ueor]
AJRIpISQNS Ul P[ay JUAUNSIAU]

sasuadxa jsurede 9[qrAI0Y
a|qeded dnyiepy

UBO[ UL)-HOYS

a1qeked puapialg

[puuosiad yusuraSeur i A3y
puuos.tad juswadeueur L3y

(paywiT (2ABALL]) [BUONBUIAU] URLIE(] A[AULIO])

P (JBALL] ) WNJ[0IID dueysIng
saedwo)) pajenossy

pajuI (9jeALLd) SBD) 0INY duBRYSINg
Areipisqng

10322.11(]

sanpaed pajejad yym saduepeg

182K ay) SuLnp 2[OIYaA Jo d[es dy) IsuleSe pAsnipe sem (JIN :€0T) UOI I [S'8 'Sy pue predal seam (UOI[IW L[ T "SY (€TOT) VO [6°901
sy 01 Sununowe Ueo| Y] "SULI] JAYI0 pue HJT Jo aseyond 10 103021I(] pue Auedwiod )LI0SSE UL ‘PAWIT (ALALL]) WNI[ONIJ dUBYSING WOL} % snid yodamnt
10 dmprew e e (UOI[IW £ (€Z0T) UOI[[IW ZE'L6 'SY PUR (UOI[IW CET "SY 1€TOT) UOI[IW (S [ 'SY O) Tununowe ueo| & paureiqo Auedwo)) ayy ‘1eak oy Suung 4

806

6¢
8TI'E
€TL'Y
€T0°LS
SLO'
200

—==(000, u1 saadny)—-

£70T

¥Tot

[EAPaN

20URA2AU0D puR Ful[aALL [,
$11J2U2q JUAWAINY

snuog

UOTIRIUNWIAL [BLIDBRURIA
UBO| ISUTESR PAATDAI JUNOWY
pasingsip ueo]

SUOIBSUR.L) JO INJEN

Puuosiad Juawdeuew A3y

digysuoneaa jo aamey

$70T ‘0€ ANNC AAANT AVAA dHL 04

SINANWALVLS TVIDNVNIA AALVAI'TOSNOONA HL OL SHLON

IEEL] ANNUAL REPORT 2024



g2k a1 Sunmp paywr] (jeAuy) Supel] aurysing Aq UNBLIIPUN IIM SUOHOBSURI} OU pue uolieiodioour 20uls panssi uadq sey [endes areys oN 4

[IN
I'N

"N
IIN
I'N
IIN
IIN
IIN
IIN
I'N
I'N
I'N
I'N
I'N

I'N
IIN
I'N
I'N

I'N
66'66

Auedwod
Y} ui SuIpjoydIeys Jo 9,

Ue]d UOIINQLIJUO)) JUALAINAY JIvIS
Ue]J UOIINGLIIUOY) JUSWINAY JIRIS

ue|d 1yauag 1udwInY JIRIS

d1ys10103.1p UOWILIOD)
drys1019211p uOWIWO)
diys1019211p UOWIWO))
diys1019211p uOWIWO))
drysiojpamp uowuro))
diys101091p uowILIO)
diys1010211p uOWILWO)
diysio10amp uowwo))
diys1010211p uOUILIO))
diys1010211p uOUILIO))
diys10102.11p uoUILIO))

diys1030211p uoUIIO)
diysioyoanp uounuo))
diysioyoalip uourno))
diys1o102.11p uouno))

Auedwo)) Arerpisqns
Auedwo)) Ateipisqng

uoneRy Jo sisegy

SINANWALVLS TVIDNVNIA AALVAI'TOSNOONA dHL OL SHLON

punj JUaPIAOL panwi (ueisiyed) D dueysing
punj uoIsudd JJei§ JUAWBLURA

pajwi (uesned) Hd 1 dueysing

pun AjimeIny paiwi (ueispyed) D1 Aueysing
panwi Auedwo)) Suunjonnsay sesodio) ueisped
PaIWI] YoLTY

payu dp fayiea]

PN SoLISNpU[ BUBS

PAHWIT [BUOTIRWISIU] ID10RJA

pojwIy (21BALLJ) WdYd0H2J N

UONBIJ0SSY SIAIMIRIN DJT ueisnjed

panwI (ABALL]) SPUBIE [RUONEBILIDIU] S]00Y
ponwl (21eAL) ASIdUg NV

panun (21eauy) sradopaadd NV

(paywiry (2)BAL) [BUONBUIAU] UBLIB(] A[IOULIO])
ponwil (BALJ) WNI[ONdJ durySIng

panwny (9eALL]) 12M0J BIRY ] [BUONBUIdIU] OJULION
pajw| ()eALL]) SPUBIg [RUONBUIDIU UBLY
pajuiy (eALld) uonerodio) SRV

(paywi (31eALIg) SANIPOWWOD) HVV ¥ VVSTV AHouLo)
panwi] (dBALLJ) senIpowiio) YVy

« PAIIWIT (2IBALL]) SUIpRI] dUBYSINg

paiwI (d1BALL]) SBD) OINY duURYSINgG

aweN

-2oepd 1 JuawaoiFe / JuawaBuriie Sey JO SUONOBSUET) 0) UT PaIRjud pry Auedwo)) ayl woym yim saned pajejar ag) ale FUIMO[IO] b

$70T ‘0€ ANNC AAANT AVAA dHL 04

111

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

m,

=1



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
2024 2023

Note (Rupees in '000) ——————-—-

45 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before minimum tax differential and income tax (70,253) (64,148)
Adjustment for non-cash and other items:

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 36 (13,349) (1,841)
Financial charges 38 69,824 56,807
Depreciation 7.2 52,213 50,933
Amortization 8.4 10,102 10,118
Provision for retirement and other service
benefits - 454
Allowance for the year 12.1 16,504 1,371
Liability for cylinder deposits written back 36 (26,122) (22,131)
109,172 95,011
Profit before working capital changes 38,919 31,563
Working capital changes 45.1 16,579 92,951
55,498 124,514

451 Working capital changes

Increase/(decrease) in current assets:

Stores and spares (1,717) 352

Stock-in-trade 18,151 18,577

Trade debts 8.621 (15.471)

Loans and advances 16,424 20,359

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14,020 78,246
55,499 102,063

Decrease in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables (38,920) (9,112)

16,579 92,951

46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per statement of financial position

Amortized cost
Long-term loans including current portion 1,231 150
Long-term deposits 3,174 3,174
Trade debts 76,722 101,847
Deposits and other receivables 20,737 37,601
Bank balances 3,427 20,076
Long-term investment 50,000 50,000

155,291 212,848
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

47

Amortized cost

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

2024

2023
——————— (Rupees in '000) -————---

Long-term loan including current maturity 101,875 116,677
Trade and other payables 35,997 78,577
Loan from a subsidiary company 50,000 50,000
Cylinder and regulator deposits 478,068 479,457
Accrued mark-up 26,953 11,886
Lease liabilities 33,410 20,055
Short-term loan 13,388 -
Short-term borrowings 154,000 153,701
893,691 910,353
CHANGE IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
As at July it r a - As at June
neseltioa 01. 2023 Additions Disposals Others Cashflows 30. 2024
(Rupees in "000)
Long-term loan 91,729 - > (23.019) - 68,710
Current portion of long-
term loan 24,948 - - 30,009 (21,792) 33,165
Lease liabilities 15,889 19,187 - (11,712) - 23,364
Current portion of lease
liabilities 3,996 - - 18,928 (12.878) 10,046
Short-term loan - 128.820 - - (115,432) 13,388
Short-term borrowings 153,701 1.247 - - (948) 154,000
Accrued mark-up 11,886 = - 55,788 (40,721) 26,953
2024 302,149 149,254 - 69,994 - 191,771 329,626
As at July % Lo a - As at June
Desciiption 01. 2022 Additions Disposals Others Cashflows 30, 2023
(Rupees in "000)
Long-term loan 114,345 - - (22,616) - 91,729
Current portion of long-
term loan 23,770 - - 30,471 (29,293) 24,948
Lease habilities 18,871 2,016 - (4,998) - 15,889
Current portion of lease
liabilities 9.304 - (2.922) 9,403 (11,789) 3,996
Short-term loan 45,000 172,000 - - (217.000) -
Short-term borrowings 151,061 - - 2,640 - 153,701
Accrued mark-up 3.205 45.674 - - (36,993) 11,886
2023 365,556 219,690 (2,922) 14,900 (295,075) 302,149
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
48  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

48.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on having cost effective funding as
well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return
to shareholders. Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance and treasury
department under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and other prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments.

i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities. It
mainly arises when receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency.

As majority of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are denominated in Pakistani
Rupees, therefore, the Company, at present, is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is primarily exposed
to interest rate risk arising from long-term loan, short term loans & borrowings from bank and
bank deposits. Borrowing at variable rate exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

2024 2023 2024 2023
Effective rate Carrying amount

—— (In percent) —— ————— (Rupees in '000) —————
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Long-term loan including
current maturity 25.74% 23.98% 101,875 116,677
Short-term loan 25.74% 23.98% 13,388 -
Short-term borrowings 25.49% 23.73% 154,000 153,701

269,263 270,378
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The 1% increase / decrease in the market interest rate, with all of the factors remaining
constant would increase /decrease the profit before tax by Rs. 2.72 million (2023: 2.7 million).

iii) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or
interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in
the market. The Company is not materially exposed to other price risk at the reporting date.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to discharge
an obligation. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures,
limiting transactions with specific counter parties and continually assessing the
creditworthiness of counter parties.

Credit risk of the Company arises from trade debts, loans, deposits and other receivables,
deposits with banks and financial institutions. The Company monitors the credit quality of its
financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets and available external
credit ratings. The carrying amount of financial assets expose to credit risk is as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000) -————-—
Long-term loans including current portion 1,231 150
Long-term deposits 3,174 3,174
Trade debts 76,722 101,847
Deposits and other receivables 20,737 37,601
Bank balances 3,427 20,076

105,291 162,848
_—

s>

For trade debts, the credit risk exposure is net of credit loss allowance as disclosed in note
12.1.

The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external
credit ratings as follows:

Name Rating agency Rating
Short term Long term

2024 2023 2024 2023
Hubib Bunk Limited VIS Al+ A+ AAA Al+
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ AAA Al+
Nationul Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ Al+ AAA Al+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ AA Al+
Sindh Bank Limited VIS Al Al+ A+ Al+
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ AA- Al+
Meezun Bank Limited VIS Al+ Al+ AAA Al+
Buank Muakramah Limited VIS MNot rated Not rated Not ruted Mot rated
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is that the risk the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation. Following are the contractual maturities of the Company’s financial

liabilities:
2024 2023
Maturity Muturity Maturity Maturity
upto one after Total upto one after Total
year one year year one year

Rupees in "000

Financial liabilities
Long-term loan including current

manirity 33,165 68,710 101,875 24,948 91,729 16,677
Lease Liability 10,046 23,364 33410 4,166 15,889 20,055
Cylinder and regulutor deposits - 478.068 478,068 - 479457 479,457
Trade and other payables - 35,997 35,997 - 78,577 78,577
Short-term loan 13388 - 13,388 - - -
Short-lerm borrowings 154,000 = 154,000 153,701 - 153,701
Acerued mark-up 26,953 - 26,953 L LERG - 11,886
Loan from a subsidiary company 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 - 50,000

287,552 606,139 B93,691 244,701 665,652 910,353

48.2 Fair value of hierarchy

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. As of the reporting date,
Company's all assets and liabilities are carried at amortized cost except for those mentioned
below:

The Company's freehold land and leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair
value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent impairment losses, if any. The fair value
measurement of the Company's freehold land at February 15, 2022 and leasehold land as at
June 14, 2022 was carried out by M/s. K. G. Traders (Private) Limited and M/s. Luckyhiya
Associate (Private) Limited (refer note 7.5).

The wvaluation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurement of
aforementioned assets are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
date (unobservable inputs).

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of the Company's freehold
land and leasehold land are as follows:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted price in Significant Significant
active markets observable unobservable Total
(level 1) inputs (level 2) inputs (level 3)

Rupees in '000
Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land - 16,800 - 16,800
Leasehold land - 569,288 - 569,288
2024 - 586,088 - 586,088

Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land - 16,800 B 16,800
Leaschold land - 569.288 - 569 288
2023 - 586,088 - 586,088

49 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business sustain future development of
the business and maximize shareholders value. The Company monitors capital using a debt
equity ratio as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Lease liability 33,410 20,055
Cylinder and regulator deposits 478,068 479,457
Loan from a subsidiary company 50,000 50,000
Short-term loan 13,388 =
Short-term borrowings 154,000 153,701
Long-term loan including current maturity 101,875 116,677
Trade and other payables 64,795 103,715
Unclaimed dividends 83,050 83,050
Deferred taxation - net - 2,660
Accrued mark-up 26,953 11,886
Total debt 1,005,539 1,021,201
Cash and bank balances 3,615 20,154
Net debt 1,009,154 1,041,355
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
2024 2023
(Rupees in '000) ~——————--

Share capital 224,888 224,888

Revenue reserves (214,960) (141,283)

Reserve for Amalgamation 153,458 153,458

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of

retirement and other service benefits (30,177) (30,177)

Revaluation surplus on property 336,715 336,715
Total equity 469,924 543,601
Capital 1,479,078 1,584,956
Gearing ratio 68.23% 65.70%

50 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

These corresponding figures have been reclassified and rearranged where necessary to
facilitate comparison, however there has been no significant reclassification except for the
following:

Description Note From To (Rupees in '"000)

Reclassification of current and s
Minimum tax

prior year tax expense to final 40 Taxation differential (8,810)
taxes - levy
2024 2023
Note (Quantity in metric ton)

51 CAPACITY

Installed annual filling capacity 37,500 37,500
Actual utilization 51.1 30,960 30,960

311 This include storage and filling capacity of hospitality locations utilization. The variations are
due to change in market demand.
2024 2023
No. of employees

52 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

As at the reporting date 80 79
Average number of employees during the year 77 74
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
53 GENERAL

These unconsolidated financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand rupee,
unless stated otherwise.

54 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on October 04, 2024 by
the Board of Directors of the Company.
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
I Fax: +92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No. 1
Y ——— www.bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BURSHANE LPG (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Burshane LPG(Pakistan) Limited and
its subsidiary Burshane Autogas (Private) Limited(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the loss and other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year then ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following;

1. Note 28.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements which provide details regarding transactions
with the Roots International Brands Private Limited (RIBS) and investigation order passed by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

2. Note 28.1.5 to the consolidated financial statements which provide details regarding complaint filed
by Directorate of Intelligence and Investigation, Inland Revenue, Karachi with the Court of Special
Judge (Customs, Taxation and Anti-Smuggling), Karachi, (Trial Court) against the Company and its
Directors alleging tax evasion. The company has been demanded tax liability of Rs. 172.05 million and
Rs. 87.75 million for the tax year 2018 and 2019.The company again preferred an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeal (CIR-A) that is currently pending

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S.No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1

Contingencies

As disclosed in note 28 of the
consolidated financial statements,
the Holding Company has
contingencies and litigations in
respect of legal, sales tax and
income tax matters, which are
pending adjudication with respective
authorities at various legal forums
available.

Contingencies require management
to make judgments and estimates in
relation to the interpretation of
relevant laws, rules and regulations,
probability of outcome and financial
impact, if any, for recognition,
measurement and disclosure of any
related provision or any other
element of consolidated financial
statements.

Due to significance of amounts
involved, inherent uncertainties with
respect to the outcome of such
matters and wuse of significant
management judgments and
estimates to assess the same
including any related financial
impacts, we considered
contingencies and litigations in
respect of legal, sales tax and
income tax matters, a key audit
matter.

We have undertaken a number of procedures to verify
the contingencies and their consequential impact on
the consolidated financial statements. This included,
among others:

» We obtained and reviewed the details of pending
legal, sales tax and income tax matters and
discussed the same with the management;

* We checked orders by relevant authority on
previous lawsuits / cases appearing in the
unconsolidated financial statements;

» We followed the progress of each case and the
Company’s estimate of the cost to be incurred;

* We obtained confirmations from legal advisors for
current status on pending previous cases and any
new case filed during the year;

» We reviewed the key elements of the
methodology employed by management in
challenging reasonableness of the cost estimates;
and

* We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in respect of contingencies in accordance
with the financial reporting standards.

Revenue

The Holding Company’s total
revenue is amounting to Rs. 2,377
million, which is predominantly
generated from sales of liquefied
petroleum gas (LPG) and low-

We performed a range of audit procedures in
relation to revenue including the following:

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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S.No | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
pressure regulators (LPR) revenue | « We considered the appropriateness of the
which reflect an decrease of 33% Company’s revenue recognition accounting
from the previous year, representing policies;

a significant element of the

consolidated financial statements as | « We obtained understanding of the revenue

disclosed in note 29. related processes;

Revenue is generated from trading | « We perform test of details on revenue

and storing of Liquefied Petroleum recognized during the year, on a sample basis,

Gas (LPG) throughout Pakistan and including review of order receipt, invoicing and

trading of Low Pressure Regulators delivery:

(LPR). Revenue from contracts with

customers is recognized when | « We performed cut-off procedures on

control of goods is transferred to the transactions occurring either immediately

customer at an amount that reflects before or after the year end to assess the

the consideration to which the recording of revenue in correct accounting

Company expects to be entitled in period; and

exchange for those goods. The

Company has generally concluded | o e also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures

that it is the principal in its revenue made in respect of revenue in accordance with

arrangements because it typically the financial reporting standards.

controls the goods or services before

transferring them to the customer.

As such, revenue recognition is not

an area of significant risk for our

audit but does require significant

time and resource to audit due to its

magnitude.

The risk of material misstatement

was considered significant due to

high control risk on completeness

and accuracy of revenue and high

inherent risk of fraud on recognition

of revenue.

In view of the significance of revenue

and high assessed risk of material

misstatement revenue is considered

as key audit matter.

3 Impairment of goodwill

The goodwill arose upon the | Our work involved the following:

amalgamation of Holding company

with HTPL as disclosed in note 8.2. » We have assessed the design and
implementation of the Company's controls

The Holding Company’s assessment relating to Management’s impairment review of

of impairment of goodwill is a goodwill.

judgmental process which requires

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
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S.No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

estimates concerning the forecast
future cash flows associated with the
goodwill held, the discount rates and
the growth rate of revenue and costs
to be applied in determining the
value in use.

At the year end, the Holding
Company, for the purpose of
impairment testing on goodwill, has
calculated recoverable amount
(value-in-use) of Cash Generating
Unit amounting to Rs. 868.395
million. The carrying amount of net
assets (including goodwill) as of the
valuation date is Rs. 469.924 million.
As a result, value-in-use exceeds the
carrying amount of net assets
(including goodwill) hence, no
impairment in goodwill has been
identified as a result of this review.

In view of the estimates and
judgements used by the
management for the calculation of
impairment of goodwill, it is
therefore considered as key audit
matter.

The Holding Company’s assessment
of impairment of goodwill is a
judgmental process which requires
estimates concerning the forecast
future cash flows associated with the
goodwill held, the discount rates and
the growth rate of revenue and costs
to be applied in determining the
value in use.

There was no impairment in the
current year

We have tested the accuracy of the underlying
model to assess whether the processes are
applied to the correct input data and the
outputs are mapped accurately.

We challenged each of the key assumptions
employed in the annual goodwill impairment
test. This included reference to our internal
valuation specialists’ benchmarking of the
weighted average cost of capital rate (‘WACC’)
employed as the discount rate employed,
including its methodology and constituent inputs
and an assessment of the Company’s historic
forecasting accuracy.

We have tested management’s sensitivity
analysis in relation to the key inputs to the
goodwill impairment test model, as well as
performing our own sensitivity analysis which
included changes to volume, margin, incentives
and the discount rate applied.

We have reviewed the appropriateness of the
disclosures provided in accordance with |AS 36
‘Impairment of Assets’.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

\

KARACHI T

DATED: October 04, 2024 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
~HARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: AR202410067UFmsuBhvy A

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note —— (Rupees in '000)
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 6 816,745 817.215
Intangible assets 7 299,305 309.407
Long-term deposits 3,174 3.174
1,119,224 1,129,796
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 8 6,038 4,321
Stock-in-trade 9 8,197 26,348
Trade debts 10 76,722 101,847
Loans and advances 11 19,746 36,170
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 12 28,696 42.933
Taxation - net 13 162,520 152,705
Cash and bank balances 14 4.407 20,853
306,326 385,177
TOTAL ASSETS 1,425,550 1,514,973
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital 15 900,000 900,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 16 224,888 224,888
Capital reserves
Revaluation surplus of property 17 336,715 336,715
Other reserves 17 123,287 123,287
Revenue reserve 18 (215,122) (141.310)
469,768 543,580
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loan 19 68,710 91,729
Lease liabilities 20 23.364 15.889
Deferred taxation - net 21 - 2,660
Cylinder and regulator deposits 22 478,068 479,457
570,142 589,735
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 23 65,038 103,907
Short-term loan 24 13,388 -
Short-term borrowings 25 154,000 153,701
Unclaimed dividends 26 83,050 83,050
Accrued mark-up 27 26,953 11,886
Current portion of long-term loan 19 33,165 24,948
Current portion of lease liabilities 20 10,046 4,166
385,640 381.658
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,425,550 1,514,973
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28
The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
P sl (el e
DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Distribution and marketing expenses
Other income

Other expenses

Operating loss

Financial costs

Loss before minimum tax differential and income tax
Minimum tax differential

Loss before income tax

Taxation

Loss for the year after taxation

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Note

29
30

31
32

33
34

36

37

38

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)
2,377,502 3,533,606
(2,239,558) (3,382,538)
137,944 151,068
(117,647) (116,148)
(64,197) (65,880)
65,816 30,490
(22,479) (7,135)
(138,507) (158,673)
(563) (7,605)
(69.,824) (56,807)
(70,387) (64,412)
(6,085) (8,810)
(76.,472) (73,222)
2,660 6,807
(73.812) (66,415)
(In Rupees)
(3.28) (2.95)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000)
Loss for the year after taxation (73,812) (66,415)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
statement of profit or loss:
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of retirement and 479
other service benefits ) -
Less: deferred taxation thereon - (122)
- 300
Total comprehensive loss for the year (73,812) (66,115)
The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from /(used in) operations 42 55,632 124,606

Retirement and other service benefits - net - 3,100

Taxes paid (15,900) (36,818)

Finance costs paid (40,721) (40,271)

Cylinder and regulator deposits - net 24.733 35,391

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 23,744 86,008
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (32,556) (33,667)

Purchases of intangible asset = (50,150)

Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 13,349 3,519

Net cash used in investing activities (19,207) (80,298)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term loan repaid (21,792) (29,293)

Short-term loan received 128,820 172,000

Short-term loan paid (115,432) (217,000)

Payment of lease liabilities (12,878) (10,136)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (21,282) (84,429)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (16,745) (78,719)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (132,848) (54,129)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (149,593) (132,848)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year comprise of:

Cash and bank balances 14 4,407 20,853

Short-term borrowings 25 (154,000) (153,701)

(149,593) (132,848)

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

The Group consists of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (note 1.1) and its subsidiary
companies i.e. Burhsane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (note 1.2.1) and Burshane Trading
(Private) Limited (note 1.2.2).

1.1 The Holding Company

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (the Holding Company) is a limited liability Company
incorporated on October 12,1966 under the Companies Ordinance,1984 and is listed on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at Suite 101, 1st
Floor, Horizon Vista, Commercial Plot No. 10, Block - 4, Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi.

The principal activity of the Holding Company is storing, trading and marketing of Liquefied
Petroleum Gas (LPG) throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR).

The Holding Company was a subsidiary of H.A.K.S. Trading (Private) Limited (HTPL). The
major shareholder of HTPL was Mr. Asad Alam Niazi, Chief executive of the Holding
Company, with 74.19% shareholding of the ordinary shares while various other shareholders
held 25.81% shares. However, consequent to the approval of the scheme of arrangement for
amalgamation of HTPL and the Holding Company by the High Court of Sindh (the Court),
HTPL was amalgamated with the Holding Company on February 20, 2015, as more fully
explained in note 6.

1.2 Subsidiary Companies

1.2.1 Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated on
September 26, 2014 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, now Companies Act,
2017. The Subsidiary Company will mainly be engaged in opening and managing petrol pumps
and Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) outlets. The registered office of the Subsidiary Company is
situated at Suit No.101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vista, Commercial - 10, Block 04, Clifton, Karachi.
The Subsidiary Company has not commenced its operations and is in the start-up phase. the
Holding Company holds 99.99% voting rights and is committed to provide financial support to
the Subsidiary Company as and when required.

1.2.2 Burshane Trading (Private) Limited (BTPL) was incorporated on October 13, 2014 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, now Companies Act , 2017, for setting up trading
operations particularly in coal and other energy related products. The registered office of BTPL
1s situated at Suite 101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vista, Plot No. Commercial Block-4, Scheme No. 5,
Clifton, Karachi. No share capital has been issued and no transactions were undertaken by
BTPL during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1.3 Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Holding Company are as

under:

Location: Purpose:

Plot No. 70, Sector 7-D, Korangi Filling Plant-1, Adjacent LPG Storage &
to Pakistan Refinery Limited, Korangi Creek, Karachi filling plant
Square No. 94, Killa no. 1,2,3,4,5,6 & 7, tehsil LPG Storage &
Faisalabad, Near Abbaspur railway station. filling plant

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

E International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017
(the Act); and

= Provisions of and directives 1ssued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Act, have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, unless stated otherwise in accounting policy.

23 Separate financial statements
These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding
Company and the Subsidiary Company as at the reporting date, here-in-after referred to as 'the
Group'.

2.3.1 Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

- power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee.
- the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
The Holding Company meets all the above conditions and hence has power over the subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated profit
and loss account from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, on
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combination. Goodwill is tested annually or whenever there is an indication of
impairment exists. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is
not reversed in future periods.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line
by line basis and the carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated
against the subsidiaries’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full.

Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) has same reporting period as
that of the Holding Company. The accounting policies of the subsidiary are consistent with the
accounting policies of the Group.

24 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani ('Rupees') or 'Rs.',
which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

3 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

3.1 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2024

The following stantdards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant or did not
have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures.
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS
Practice January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 'Tncome Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the
requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to pillar
two income taxes January 01, 2023

The Holding Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting
Standard (1AS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not
result in any changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy
information disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting
policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure
of accounting policies, assisting the Holding Company to provide useful entity-specific
accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the
consolidated financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in
"Note 5 - Material Accounting Policies" in certain instances in line with the amendments and
concluded that all its accounting policies are material for disclosure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

3.2

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant or are not expected to have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier
finance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendmends to IAS | 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current
liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements

Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Effective date
(annual periods

beginning on or

after)

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued
bylASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the

adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The accounting policies adopted in the presentation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

4.1 Property, plant and equipment
4.1.1 Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if
any, except for freehold land and leasehold land, which are stated at revalued amount.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss using straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset
1s allocated over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 6.1. Depreciation on additions
is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use, while no depreciation is
charged in the month in which the asset is disposed off. The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit or
loss as and when incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or expense in the
profit or loss in the period of disposal.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
(OCI) and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, the increase is recorded
in profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously. A
decrease as a result of revaluation is recognised in profit or loss however, a decrease is recorded
in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
entry in revaluation surplus in respect of same asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
4.1.2 Right of use assets

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an
estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date of
commencement date to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically
reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease

liability.
4.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists
of expenditure incurred in respect of tangible assets in the course of their construction and
mnstallation, including financial charges on borrowings, if any, for financing the project until
such projects are completed or become operational. Transfers are made to relevant asset
category as and when assets are available for use.

4.2 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable
to the asset will flow to the Group and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably.

Intangible assets, where applicable, are amortised from the month when such assets are
available for use on straight line method whereby the cost of an intangible asset is allocated
over its estimated useful life, at the rates given in note 7.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the asset.

a) Software

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable computer software and have probable
economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Costs include the
purchase cost of software, implementation cost and related overhead cost. Intangible assets
acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses thereon.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its
original specification and useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the
original cost of the software.

b) Goodwill

This represents excess of cost of acquisition over fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the Company at the time of amalgamation by HTPL.

Goodwill on acquisition is not amortised but tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

c) Trademarks

This represents separately acquired trade marks with indefinite useful life. These are stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Carrying amounts of trademarks are subject to
impairment review at each reporting date.

4.3 Stores and spares

Stores and spares to be consumed in the ordinary course of business are valued at First in First
Out (FIFO) basis and net realizable value (NRV) except for those in transit, if any, which are
stated at cost. Cost comprises of invoice value plus other direct costs incurred thereon.
Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items wherever necessary and is recognised in
profit or loss.

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). Cost is determined
using the weighted average method for both Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) and Low Pressure
Regulators (LPR). Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other
charges incurred thereon.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

4.5 Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for impairment, if any. A

provision for impairment is established under expected credit loss approach. Trade debts and
other receivables are written-off when considered irrecoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash with banks on current, collection, deposit
and saving accounts and short-term running finance. Running finances under mark-up
arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of
financial position.

4.7 Retirement and other service benefits
471 Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a recognised contributory provident fund for all permanent employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Group and the employees at the rate of
8.33% per annum of the basic salary for management and non-management employees,
respectively.

4.8 Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments over the
lease term, discounted using the specific incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently lease
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the
rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

4.9 Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Loan and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless the Holding Company has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.12.1

4.12.2

Trade and other payables

These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of liabilities in
foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective lLiability.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Holding Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimate.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or Minimum Tax on Turnover or
Alternate Corporate Tax, whichever 1s higher in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising at the
reporting date between the tax base of asset and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it 1s probable that the
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset may be utilised. Deferred tax
asset are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recognised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
4.12.3 Levy

The amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate is recognized as current
income tax expense for the year in Statement of Profit or Loss. Any excess of expected income
tax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance over the amount designated as current
income tax for the year, is then recognized as a levy.

4.13 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in the period in which these are approved.

4.14 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, if any.

4.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset 1s classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which a financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it 18 held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCTI if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of a equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Group may
urevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as described above
are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that
is initially measured at the transaction price, determined under IFRS 15) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an ifem not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at FVTPL - The Group has not designated any financial asset as fair
value through profit or loss:

- Financial assets at amortised cost - The Group subsequently measures financial assets
at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired:

- Debt instruments at FVOCI - The Group has not designated any financial asset at fair
value through OCI with / without recycling of cumulative gains and losses; and upon
derecognition.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:
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- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment / expected credit losses on financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 180 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there 1s no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

The Group uses the IFRS 9's simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life-time ECL
on its trade debts and contractual assets, where as for other financial assets loss allowance is
measured at 12 months ECL under general approach of measuring ECL. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the financial assets and the economic
environment. The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive
to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. For trade debts, the Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The expected credit losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
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ii) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are generally classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
amortized cost.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group financial liabilities include long-term loan, accrued mark-up on long-term loan,
liabilities under finance lease, cylinder and regulator deposits and trade and other payables.

Loans and borrowings

This 1s the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings
and trade and other payables.

Derecognition

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss.

ii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
1s an intenfion to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seftle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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4.16 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Holding Company is in the business of storing, marketing and trading of Liquefied
Petroleum Gas (LPG) throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR).
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

The Holding Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be
allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Holding Company
considers the effects of wvariable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Performance obligations
Information about the Holding Company performance obligations are summarised below:

Sale of LPG and LPR

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of LPG and LPR at LPG pump stations.
Payment is generally due at the time of delivery. The revenue from sale of these products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer i.e. on
delivery of products.

Others

- Return on saving account is recorded using effective interest rate method.
- Other revenues including recovery of storage and handling charges and rental income
from storage tank are accounted for on accrual basis.

- Income from dividend, if any, is recognised when right to receive dividend is
established.

The Group recognises an account receivable when the performance obligations have been met,
recognising the corresponding revenue. Moreover, the consideration received before satisfying
the performance obligations are recognised as advances from customer.

4.17 Change in accounting policy

During the year, the Group changed its accounting policy of recognizing the portion of income
tax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance, not based on the taxable profits of the
Group, as a Levy under IFRIC-21/IAS-37 instead of the current income tax for the year under
IAS-12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The management believes that the new policy provides reliable and more relevant information
to the users of the consolidated financial statements.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with
International Accounting Standard 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’. There is, however, no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the prior years.

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. In the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and
Judgments which are significant to these consolidated financial statements:

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual values
used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable
amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.

5.2 Intangible assets

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of amortisation and useful life used in the
calculation for amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of
assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.

5.3 Taxation

In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Group, the management
considers the applicable laws and the decisions / judgements of appellate authorities on certain
issues in the past. Accordingly, the recognition of deferred tax is also made, taking into account
these judgements and the best estimates of future results of operations of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.6

6.7

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
The depreciation charge for the year has been
allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 30 7,243 8,024
Administrative expenses 11,196 11,307
Distribution and marketing expenses 32 33,774 31,602
52,213 50,933

These are in custody of distributors / customers owing to the nature of business of the
Holding Company. The particulars of these assets have not been disclosed due to a large
number of customers.

The Holding Company possess leasehold lands of measuring 5.875 acres in Karachi.
However, the legal title is on the name of H.A.K.S Trading (Private) Limited (HTPL), the
former Holding Company.

The Holding Company’s freehold land and leasehold land was revalued on February 15, 2022
by M/s. K. G. Traders (Private) Limited and on June 14, 2022 by M/s. Luckyhiya Associates
(Private) Limited, an independent valuer, on the basis of their professional assessment of
present market value for similar sized plots in the near vicinity of land. The revaluation has
resulted in surplus for freehold and leasehold land amounting to Rs. 0.30 million and Rs. Nil
respectively.

Had the revaluation not been carried out, the related figures of freehold land and leasehold
land would have been Rs. 5.62 million (2023: Rs. 5.62 million) and Rs. 243.75 million (2023:
Rs. 243.75 muillion), respectively.

The forced sales value as per the revaluation report as of February 15, 2022 and June 14,
2022 is as follows:

2024
Class of asset (Rupees in "000
Freehold land 16,800
Leasehold land 569288
Particulars of immaovable assets of the Company are as follows:
Particulars Usage ol property Covered Area
(Square feet)
Freehold land For future business Chak No. 245, Near Railway
Station, Abbaspur, Faisalabad
104.544
Leasehold land For future business Commercial - cunr Residential
Land Deh Okewari, Shahrah - e -
Famsal Survey # 47
107811
Leasehold land For future business Commercial - cum- Residential
expansion Land Deh Okewary, Shalrah - e -
Fasal Survey # 74
40293
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

7

7.1

7.2

Parficulars Usage of property Covered Area
(Square feet)
Building on Plant site Plot No. 70, Sector 7-
leasehold land D,Korangi Filling Plant-1,
Adjacent to Pakistan Refinery
Limited, Korangi Creek,
Karachi
9,710
Leasehold land Plant site LPG Storage & Filling Plant,
Near Railway Station,
Abbaspur, Faisalabad 6.380
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Mot Book
Cust A i Amartisution Value
As af July 2 2 As ot June  As at Jaly  Charge for the S As al June Ax ot Jong
o1,2023  Cdditions  Dispoxals oy Gre 01,2023 yearfnote 8.4 Revexnal 30, 2024 30, 2024 Rate of
amortisation
(Rupees in "000)
Goodwill 253,041 253,91 . . - ) 253,091 Nil
Computer software 4272 - - 4271 4200 T2 - 4272 20%
Rights under
Supply contructs (notes 7.2) 50,150 50,150 2506 10,030 ] 12,536 37614 201,
Teademark B.600 - - R.600 - - 8,600 Nil
2024 316,113 E - 316,113 6,706 10,102 - 16,808 299305
Net Book
Cast 2 Aamartis i Vishue
As ot July As uf June  As af July  Charge for the As at June  As ot June
p1,2022 Cdditions - Dliposale 033 01,2022 year (note 8.4 ) RevEbum 30, 123 30, 2023 Rate of
umaortisation
(Rupees in '000)
Goodwill 253,091 253091 - . - - 253,091 Nil
Computer software 4272 - - 4272 4,112 b3 - 4200 72 20
Rights under
Supply contricts (notes 7.2) 50,150 50,150 (50,150)  S0,050 42,626 10,030 50,150 2506 47,644 A,
Trademark 8,600 x = 8,600 = - - 8,600 Nil
2023 316,113 50150 (50,150) 316,113 46,738 10,118 50,150 6,706 109407
At June 30, 2023, intangible assets having cost of Rs. 4.27 million (2023: Rs. 3.84 million)

are fully amortised.

Impairment review of goodwill and trademarks:

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited,
which is the cash generating unit (CGU) and also the only operating and reportable segment
for impairment review.

Carrying amount of goodwill

Carrying amount of trademarks

[EEL) ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024

2023

-——————- (Rupees in '000) ——

253,091

253,091

8,600

8,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Holding Company performed its annual impairment review in June 2024 and June 2023.
The Company considers the relationship between its recoverable amount and its book value,
among other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. At June 30, 2024, the
recoverable amount of the CGU was above the book value of its net assets, indicating no
potential impairment of goodwill and impairment of the assets of the operating segment. The
result of this impairment test depends to a large extent on Management’s assessment of future
cash inflows and the discount rate used, and is therefore subject to considerable uncertainty.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the 'fair value less cost to sell' and the 'value-in-use'.
The assumptions are assessed at each reporting date and adjusted when appropriate.

The Holding Company uses a Discounted Cash Flow model (DCF) to determine the value in
use. Cash flow projections for the first five years are based on budgeting and forecasting
models endorsed by the Company’s Management. After five years a terminal value
calculation is applied. Within the DCF techniques the terminal value is determined by
applying a perpetual growth rate to the perpetual free cash flows. With respect to the
appropriateness of the future cash inflows used in the calculation management used budgets
of five-year plan adopted by Management and approved by the Board of Directors, as well as
by comparison with general and sector-specific market expectations.

The Holding Company applied a discount rate of 19.75% to the forecasted free cash flow
based on a WACC of the Company. The WACC 1s an average cost of capital consisting of
two parts - cost of debt and cost of equity.

As the Holding Company’s capital consists of 34.47% debt and 65.53% equity. Calculating
the cost of equity was done by applying the capital asset pricing model (“CAPM”). The
assumptions applied in the CAPM included the following: a risk-free rate of 14% a beta of
0.93 for the Company and an equity risk premium of 8.54%. The risk-free rate was based on
the yield of ten-year Pakistan Investment Bonds on the Date of Valuation as per the State
Bank of Pakistan. Combining these assumptions yielded a cost of equity of 22.01%

The recoverable amount of CGU as at June 30, 2024 has been determined based on a value-in-
use. The Value in Use of the Company indicated by the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method
approximates to Rs. 690.444 million. The carrying value of net assets (including goodwill) as
of the valuation date is Rs. 469.924 million. As the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying
value of net assets (including goodwill), no impairment in goodwill has been identified as a
result of this review.

The Holding Company tested its trademark "Burshane" as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023
for impairment. Value-in-use of Rs. 243.582 million as at June 30, 2024 of the trademarks
has been calculated using Relief from Royalty Method. This method considers the royalties
saved by owning the intellectual property rather than licensing it. It is commonly used in the
valuation of similar assets and, from a valuation perspective, appears reasonable 1in this case.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations:

The calculation of value-in-use for both CGU and trademarks, is most sensitive to the
following assumptions:

Sales volume growth

Discount rates

Market share during the forecast period

Royalty rate used for the forecast period

Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period

Sales volume growth

Value in use is sensitive to sales volume growth. Sales volume growth has been assumed to
increase in line with management's expectations of Holding Company's market share.

Discount rates

Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU,
taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying
assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates.

The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company and its
operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The
WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the
expected return on investment by the Holding Company's investors. The cost of debt is based
on the interest-bearing borrowings the Holding Company is obliged to service.

Market share during the forecast period

When using industry data for growth rates (as described below), these assumptions are
important because management assesses how the unit’s position, relative to its competitors,
might change over the forecast period. Management expects the Holding Company's market
share in the LPG industry to be stable over the forecast period.

Royalty rate used for the forecast period

The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1% and have been discounted at
the WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.It was concluded that
the carrying amount did not exceed the value-in-use. As a result of this analysis, no
impairment has been identified by the Holding Company against the trademark with a
carrying amount of Rs. 8.600 million as at June 30, 2024.

The implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Sales volume growth

Value in use is sensitive to price and cost per ton of local and imported LPG and cost pass-
through. The value in use was tested at various sales volume growth levels. A decline of
3.88% or more in sales volume growth would result in impairment of the CGU.

Discount rate assumptions
A rise in pre-tax discount rate by 4.71% would result in the impairment of the CGU.
Market share during the forecast period assumptions

Management expects the Holding Company to maintain its market share based on the
expected demand of the product and the ready supply base it has to service the demand.

Royalty rate assumptions

The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1%, and have been discounted at
the WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.It was concluded that
the carrying value did not exceed the value in use. As a result of this analysis, no impairment
has been identified by the Holding Company against trademark with a carrying amount of Rs.
8.60 million as at June 30, 2024.

Growth rate assumptions

Cashflow beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using 3% growth based on that
used by the management and long term real GDP growth forecast.

7.2 During the year, the Holding Company participated in a tender offer by Oil & Gas
Development Company Limited (OGDCL) in respect of purchase of LPG from Kunnar
Pasaki Deep - Tando Allahyar Gas Field District Hyderabad. On successful submission of the
highest signature bonus bid of Rs. 50.15 million, the Holding Company has been allotted one
lot of LPG of five metric tons per day for five years from the Kunnar Pasaki Deep - Tando
Allahyar.

7:3 This represents consideration paid to OPI Gas (Private) Limited in 2011 for acquisition of
rights and title to "Burshane" trademarks. These trademarks are considered to have an
indefinite useful life, and therefore have not been amortised. Further, no impairment has been
identified in this regard.
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
7.4 The amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 30 10,030 10,030
Administrative expenses 31 72 88
10,102 10,118
8 STORES AND SPARES
Stores 6,254 4,795
Spares parts 1,104 846
7.358 5,641
Provision for obsolete items (1,320) (1,320)
6.038 4,321
9 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) 9.1 7,733 25,814
Low Pressure Regulators (LPR) 464 534
8,197 26,348

9.1 This includes stock amounting to Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 3.07 million) held with the following
parties under hospitality arrangements:

OPI Jamber Plant - 41
Ravi Sahiwal E 17
Sadiq Gas Company - 1,875
Lite Gas Plant = 1,002
Terra Energy (Private) Limited - 89
Baba Fareed Gas = 9
Bashir Gas = 13
Ali Akbar Energy - 21

- 3,067

9.2 At June 30, 2024, stock of LPG held on behalf of third parties amounted to Rs. Nil (2023: Rs.
4.51 million).

10 TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured - considered good

Trade debtors 99.214 107,835
Allowance for expected credit losses 10.1 (22,492) (5,988)
76,722 101,847
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ———
10.1  Allowance for expected credit losses
Balance as at July 01 5,988 4,617
Allowance for the year 34 16,504 1,371
Balance as at June 30 22,492 5,988

10.2  Ageing analysis of these trade debts as at the reporting date 1s as follows:

Upto 1 month 41,448 60,173
1 to 6 months 29,452 25,907
More than 6 months 28.314 21,755

99,214 107,835

11 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans to staff 1,231 150
Advances to (Unsecured - considered good)

Chief executive officer 12.2 - 2,555

Contractors and suppliers 18,515 33,465

18,515 36,020

19,746 36,170

12.2  The maximum aggregate amount due from Chief executive officer against advance from
travelling at the end of any month was Rs. 2.68 million (2023: Rs. 2.56 million).

12 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposits 12.1 995 19,621
Prepayments 8,772 5,928
Other receivables 12.2 18,929 17,384

28,696 42,933

12.1  This represents short term deposits in the normal course of business and does not carry any
interest or mark-up.

12.2 Other receivables

OPI Gas (Private) Limited 12.3 3,642 3,642
Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited 12.4 9,000 9,000
Others 12.5 11,392 9,847
24,034 22.489
Allowance for expected credit losses (5,105) (5,105)
18,929 17,384
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12.3

12.5.1

13

14

This represents receivable against reimbursement of expenses incurred for debranding
activities, which has not been acknowledged by the counter party, thus fully provided.

This represents amount receivable from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited (formerly
Darian International (Private) Limited) amounting to Rs. 9 million (2023: Rs. 9 million), a
related party, as consideration against use of the Holding Company's name under an
arrangement entered in the year 2016.

This includes receivable against cylinder deposits of Rs. 3.72 million (2023: Rs. 3.36
million).

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding from subsidiary company, associated
companies and other related parties at any time of the year by reference to month end
balances is as follows:

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ———
Other related party
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund 760 3,151
Subsidiary Company
Burshane Autogas (Private) Limited 821 596
Associated Company
Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited 9,000 9,000
10,581 12,747

The ageing analysis of receivable balances due from related parties / associated companies is
as follows:

More than 6 months = -
More than 12 months 9,000 9.000

9,000 9,000

TAXATION - NET

Advance tax 15,900 36,819
Provision for taxation (6,085) (8,810)

9,815 28.009

Income tax refundable 152,705 124,696

162,520 152,705

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 188 78
Cash at banks

saving accounts 14.1 2,828 5,652

current accounts 1,391 15,123

4,219 20,775

4,407 20,853
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14.1

15

16

16.1

The profit rates on these saving accounts range from 7.51% to 20.50% per annum (2023:
6.83% to 22.55% per annum). These balances are held in accounts maintained under
conventional banking.

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares) - -————- (Rupees in '000) ——

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
90,000,000 90,000,000 each 900,000 900,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Number of ordinary

shares of Rs. 10/- each 2024 2023
2024 2023 -—————- (Rupees in '000) ——
19,881,766 19.881,766 Fully paid in cash 198,817 198,817
Fully paid for consideration other
76.820 76,820 than cash 768 768
2.530.304 2,530,304 Fully paid bonus shares 25.303 25303
22.488.890 22,488,890 224 888 224 888

As a result of the Scheme of amalgamation, the authorised share capital of the Holding
Company enhanced to Rs. 900 million divided into 90 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.
Further, pursuant to the effects of amalgamation, the paid-up share capital of the Holding
Company reduced by 151,154 shares.

The Holding Company has completed legal formalities for cancellation of 151,154 shares and
issued of new share certificates, which are appearing in the name of HTPL to the
shareholders of HTPL (former Holding Company) in accordance with the Scheme. Post
completion of legal formalities, Chief Executive, holds 12,327,129 [2023: 54.81% (2023:
54.81%)] ordinary shares of the Holding Company of Rs. 10 each and other directors holds
2,000 [2023: 0.01% (2023: 1.39%)] ordinary shares of the Holding Company of Rs. 10 each.

At June 30, 2024, institutions held 14.21% (2023: 14.21%) and individuals and others held
the balance of 30.97% (2023: 29.59%) voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and
block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
17 CAPITAL RESERVES
Revaluation surplus of property 17.1 336,715 336,715
Other reserves
Reserver for amalgamation 153,458 153,458
Actuarial loss on remeasurement of
retirement and other service benefits (30,171) (30.171)
460,002 460,002
17.1  The revaluation surplus on property is a capital reserve, and is not available for distribution to
the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.
18 REVENUE RESERVE
General reserve 90,000 90,000
Accumulated loss (305,122) (231,310)
(215,122) (141,310)
19 LONG-TERM LOAN
Secured
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) 19.1 101,875 116,677
Current portion of long-term loan (33,165) (24.,948)
68,710 91,729
19.1  During 2015, long-term finance obtained. under conventional banking terms, by HTPL had
been transferred to the Holding Company at the time of amalgamation (the scheme). This
loan was obtained as a demand finance facility under the agreement dated April 08, 2013
from NBP and was repayable in 9 semi-annual installments of Rs. 44.44 million latest by
April 01, 2018 with a grace period of six months. The loan carried mark-up at rate of 6
months KIBOR plus 2.5% to 6% per annum. This loan was secured by way of mortgage on
leasehold land and charge on the Holding Company’s present and future current and fixed
assets as well as personal guarantee of Chief Executive of the Holding Company. In previous
years, the Holding Company negotiated several offer letters from NBP.
On September 20, 2021, the Holding Company received a proposal via offer letter No.
NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2021/770 supplemented by offer letter for the restructuring /
rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2022/08 dated January 06, 2022 and
addendum to offer letter for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme dated June 03, 2022 for
the restructuring of loan from NBP which has since been accepted on June 08, 2022 by the
Holding Company's management.
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However, the competent authority of NBP approved the acceptance of this offer by the
Holding Company and executed restructuring of long-term loan amounting to Rs. 254.44
million and its related accrued mark-up amounting to Rs. 119.39 million into three different
facilities with effect from June 09, 2022, as mentioned below:

In respect Demand Finance-I (DF-I) facility:

- The part of long-term loan amounted to Rs. 100.44 million restructured as DF-I.

- Upfront payment of Rs. 25.44 million to be made immediately.

- Remaining balance of Rs. 75 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting
from September 30, 2022 with a grace period of 1 year.

- The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2%, which will also be
payable during the grace period.

In respect Demand Finance-II (DF-II) facility:

- Frozen accrued mark-up amounted to Rs. 119.39 million on long-term loan restructured
as DF-IL.

- The Holding Company to pay an amount of Rs. 113.82 million towards frozen mark-up.

- Upfront payment of Rs. 18.52 million (including accrued mark-up amounting to Rs.
7.90 million for the period from January 01, 2022 to June 09, 2022) to be made

- Remaining amount of Rs. 95.29 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting
from September 30, 2022.

- The facility carries no mark-up.

In respect Running Finance facility:

- Another part of long term loan amounted to Rs. 154 million restructured as running
- The facility carries mark-up of 3 month KIBOR + 1.75%.

The restructuring / rehabilitation scheme of Burshane L PG (Pakistan) Limited has resulted in
a loan restructuring gain, on original long tem loan and accrued mark-up thereon, of Rs.
37.76 million on effective date of loan restructuring 1.e. June 09, 2022 as described below:

Carrying amount of long term loan Note Rupees in '000'
before restructuring
Long-term loan 19 254439
Accrued mark-up 27 119,392
373,831
Loan restructured:
Long-term loan 19 138,115
Short-term borrowings (running finance) 25 154,000
292,115
81,716
Less: upfront payment on account of long-term loan and
frozen mark-up 43,960
Gain on loan restructuring 33 37,756
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In addition, this restructuring arrangements are secured by way of the following;

1st charge on present and future current and fixed assets of the Holding Company of Rs.
750 million already registered at SECP;

1% registered mortgage of land and building of both project locations i.e. Karachi and
Faisalabad mentioned in latest balance sheet, to be created as per the original offer letter
by NBP for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW-
S/BLPL/2021/770 dated September 20, 2021. However, as per the revised offer letter by
NBP for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW-S/BLPL/2022/08
dated January 06, 2022, the existing collateral is replaced by 1% Registered mortgage
and 99% equitable mortgage of Freehold Land (i.e Chak no. 245 Near Railway Station,
Abbaspur, Faisalabad, forced sales value of the said location is Rs. 50 million dated
December 02, 2021);

1% registered mortgage and balance by way of equitable mortgage on the Holding
Company's owned following properties situated in Karachi by Rs. 660 million registered
at SECP;

residential / commercial land bearing No. 74 measuring 37 Ghuntas situated at Deh
Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya Associates (Pvt).
Ltd having market value of Rs. 89.63 million and forced sales value amounting to Rs.
71.71 million dated June 30, 2020;

residential / commercial land bearing No. 47 measuring 2 Acre and 19 Ghuntas situated
at Deh Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya Associates
(Pvt). Ltd having market value of Rs. 239.83 million and forced sales value amounting to
Rs. 191.86 million dated June 30, 2020:

personal guarantee of CEO of the Holding Company;

undertaking for routing all sales through the Holding Company's account with NBP cash
management system;

assignment of long term deposits lying with various refineries (on best efforts);

replacement of 16,834,434 shares of HAKS Trading (Pvt). Ltd (held by NBP) with
shares of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited to be completed in three months under the
supervision / guidance of NBP legal division as a result of name change of the

organization. Further, after the conversion of said shares, shares of Burshane LPG
(Pakistan) Limited to be held with NBP.
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There are certain other terms and conditions attached in the aforementioned letter dated
September 20, 2021 in respect of restructuring / rehabilitation of loan which the Holding
Company have to comply with, some of which are mentioned below:

- Adjusted Debt to EBITDA not to exceed 4 times.

- Debt Service Coverage Ratio not to fall below 1.1.

- No new dividend to be paid / announced during rescheduling period or prior approval
from NBP to be obtained.

- NBP’s prior approval to be obtained for the payment of unclaimed dividend amount to
the sponsoring directors.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ———
20 LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance as at July 01 20.1 20,055 28,175
Addition 19,187 2,016

Disposal - (2,922)
Interest expense 7,046 4,575
46,288 31.844

Payments made during the year (12,878) (11,789)
33,410 20,055

Current portion of lease liabilities (10,046) (4,166)
Balance as at June 30 23,364 15,889

20.1  For determining, lease liabilities, the Holding Company discounted lease payments using its
incremental borrowing rate 28.48% per annum (2023: 22.25% per annum).

20.2  Represents finance lease entered into with a leasing company for vehicles. Total lease rentals
due under lease agreement aggregated to Rs. 22.12 mullion (2023: Rs. 25.66 million) and are
payable in equal monthly installments latest by September 2028. Taxes, charges, demands
and levies, repair and maintenance are to be borne by the Holding Company.

20.3  Maturity analysis-contractual cash flow

Less than one year 10,046 4,166
One to five year 23,364 15,889
More than five year - -
Total lease liability 33,410 20,055
21 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation 17,541 20,856
Post employment benefits - 122
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
Deductible temporary differences
Lease liabilities (9,689) (5,816)
Minimum turnover tax (6,085) (8,902)
Provisions (8,386) (3,600)
(6,619) 2,660
Deferred tax asset not recognised 6.619 -
- 2,660
21.1  Deferred tax asset have not been recognised in respect of deductible temporary differences,
because the Holding Company is subject to minimum tax under section 113 of the Income
Tax Ordinance (ITO), 2001.
22 CYLINDER AND REGULATOR DEPOSITS
This represents non-interest bearing deposits which are refundable on termination of
distributorship agreements and / or return of cylinders and ancillary equipment as per the
Group's policy.
23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 14,145 54,959
Accrued liabilities 3,230 3,768
Advances from distributors / customers - unsecured 17,704 16,770
Workers' Welfare Fund 3,017 3,017
Withholding tax payable 5,487 5,102
Sales tax payable 2,590 249
Others 18,865 20,042
65,038 103,907
24 SHORT-TERM LOAN
Related party - unsecured
Loan from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited 24.1 - =
Loan from Director 24.1 13,388 -
13,388 -
24.1 The loan was obtained from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited and Director amounting to
Rs. 31.50 million (2023: Rs. 155 million) and Rs. 97.32 million (2023: 17) for purchase of
LPG. During the reporting period, loan amounting to Rs. 106.91 million (2023: Rs. 217
million) was repaid and Rs. 8.51 million (2023: Nil) was adjusted against the sale of vehicle
during the year. Loan carries rate of return of KIBOR + 2%.
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25  SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The Holding Company has arrangement for running finance facility under mark-up
arrangement from NBP amounting to Rs. 154 million along with an import LC sight.

The rate of mark-up on running finance facility is 3 months KIBOR + 1.75% per annum. The
arrangements are secured by way of mortgage on leasehold land and charge on the Holding
Company’s present and future current and fixed assets as well as personal guarantee of Chief
Executive of the Holding Company.

26 UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

Opening balance 83,050 83,050
Dividend paid during the year - -
Closing balance 83,050 83,050

26.1  These includes an amount of Rs. 59.08 million payable to the directors of the Holding
Company (2023: Rs. 60.59 million payable to the beneficial owners of HTPL). However,
NBP’s prior approval to be obtained for the payment of unclaimed dividend amount to the
sponsoring directors as disclosed in note 19.

27 ACCRUED MARK-UP

Mark-up accrued on:

Short-term loan 27.1 2,657 .

Long-term loan 6,319 3,801

Short-term borrowings 17,977 8,085
26,953 11,886

27.1  This represents accrued mark-up payable to Director.

28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
28.1  Contingencies

28.1.1 An inspection order dated August 04, 2020 under Section 221 of Companies Act, 2017 was
issued by SECP against complaint received by the Commission wherein it was alleged that
the CEO and Director Finance of the Company are involved in financial irregularities of the
Companies Act, 2017, which include advance made to Roots International Brands Private
Limited (RIBS), an associate company, and that the bank account was being used for illegal
activities by CEO and the Holding Company’s Director Finance who appears to have
concealed the existence of such financial transactions.
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28.1.2

On the conclusion of inspection, a report was issued on October 23, 2020 mentioning
cognizance of offences under sections 204, 199(1), 199(2), 183(2), CEO and Director
Finance of the Holding Company, during the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020 and
suggested that they are liable with regard to all the above non-compliances as the Board of
Directors did not discuss or approve transactions with RIBS until June 26, 2020 and the
predecessor auditors are liable for proceedings to be initiated under section 249 read with
section 253 of the Act as they failed to highlight lack of disclosure of transactions with RIBS
in notes to the financial statements for year ended June 30, 2019 especially in related parties
note as required under IAS 24. The Auditor also failed to highlight the unsecured interest free
loans extended without any agreement to a related party i.e., RIBS before June 03, 2019.

The Holding Company has provided the comments on findings to SECP, that the non-
compliance was not intenfional but was omission by mistake. The Holding Company had
advanced certain amount to RIBS, However, the Holding Company has received all the
monies back with mark up and therefore there is no financial loss to the Holding Company.
The Board has subsequently ratified all these transactions with RIBS, and therefore to an
extent the non-compliance has been addressed. It was merely an oversight of SECP
compliance regulations. It has further been resolved in the Board that extra care shall be taken
in future to ensure that non-compliance should not takes place.

The Holding Company has been imposed penalty of Rs. 2 million by SECP on October 11,
2022. However, the Holding Company filed a Constitutional Petition with Honorable High
Court challenging the constitutional as well as legal validity of the inspection order passed by
SECP.

The Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) has been filed by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at
Karachi on December 18, 2019. During the year ended June 30, 2018, tax authorities issued
Order dated May 25, 2018 and charged sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990,
raising sales tax demand and imposing penalties aggregating to Rs. 133.11 million and also
default surcharge for tax periods from July 2014 to March 2018. Against the said Order, the
Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals—I), Karachi who vide Order dated July
03, 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales tax of Rs. 65.57 million and reduced
the imposition of penalties from Rs. 67.54 million to Rs. 0.50 million only. However, the
liability on account of default surcharge was maintained.

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 1.34 million and maintained the amount of
penalty Rs. 0.50 million. The Holding Company has paid the reduced amount of default
surcharge and penalty without pursuing the matter before the High Court.
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28.1.3 The captioned Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) is filed by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at
Karachi. On September 28, 2018, tax authorities levied sales tax under section 8B of Sales
Tax Act, 1990, raising sales tax demand along with the levy of penalty aggregating to Rs.
7.90 million for tax periods from April 2018 to May 2018.

Against the Order, the Holding Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals—I),
Karachi, who vide Order dated October 31, 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales
tax of Rs. 7.67 million. However, the liability on account of default surcharge and penalty
was maintained.

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 0.16 million and maintained the amount of
penalty Rs. 0.23 million. The Holding Company has paid the reduced amount of default
surcharge and penalty without pursuing the matter further.

28.1.4 The Holding Company has filed Special Federal Excise Duty (FED) Ref. Application before
the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh against the Appellate order dated April 02, 2012 of the
Appellate Tribunal IR. The tax authorities at Large Taxpayers Office established a demand
towards FED on the payment of license fee paid/payable by the Company in relation with the
software / IT services acquired from the non-resident parent company under the tariff heading
“franchise service” as per First Schedule to Federal Excise Act, 2005. At that time, Burshane
LPG (Pakistan) Limited was a subsidiary of Shell Group, operating under the name of Shell
LPG Pakistan Limited. The scope of services under the head ‘franchise services’ was not
clear when the Federal Excise Act was promulgated in the year 2005 and then the
jurisdictional issues also made the matter more complicated when the franchise services were
subjected to Provincial sales tax by promulgation of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011
effective July 01, 2011.

The scope of services under the head ‘franchise services” was not clear when the Federal
Excise Act was promulgated in the year 2005 and then the jurisdictional issues also made the
matter more complicated when the franchise services were subjected to Provincial sales tax
by promulgation of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 effective July 01, 2011.

Software licensing does not fall under the service classification “franchise services” and this
aspect has been settled at the Appellate Tribunal level in reported judgments, also. Hence, the
Holding Company has a strong arguable case to defend its position that the impugned demand
of FED may not be warranted.
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28.1.5

28.1.6

28.1.7

A complaint was filed by the Directorate of Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) (I
& I - IR) on August 31, 2020, against the Holding Company for alleged Tax evasion of
approximately Rs. 1.78 billion, with Special Court for Customs, Taxation and (Anti-
Smuggling). Based on this complaint the court passed 2 orders against the Company and
some of its directors. The orders were pertaining to freezing of the Company’s 9 bank
accounts for 90 days and issuance of non bailable arrest warrants of its certain Directors. The
Holding Company immediately obtained Protective Bail from the High Court and
subsequently from the Special Court which was later confirmed.

The Holding Company also filed a Constitutional Petition with High Court against the order
of the Special Court for freezing of 9 bank accounts. All banks have removed the freeze on
the Holding Company’s accounts on expiry of 90 days.

The Holding Company had received notices under section 177(1) of Income Tax Ordinance
(ITO), 2001 regarding audit for tax years 2018 and 2019. The Holding Company has replied
and submitted relevant details and documents timely through various letters to FBR. The
Holding Company has received further notices under section 122(5A) of the ITO, 2001
demanded income tax liability amounting to Rs. 609.79 million and Rs. 617.30 million for the
tax year 2018 and 2019. An appeal was preferred before the Commissioner Inland Revenue —
Appeal (CIR-A) whereby the CIR-A remanded back the case to the concerned Officer Inland
Revenue (OIR). Thereafter, remanded back proceeding was initiated by the learned OIR, that
culminated on an order under section 124/129 of the Ordinance, whereby the demanded tax
liability of Rs. 172.05 million and Rs. 87.75 million for the tax year 2018 and 2019 was
created. Being aggrieved, the taxpayer again preferred an appeal before CIR-A, that is
currently pending.

The Director of Intelligence and Investigation, Inland Revenue had appeared on TV in
Kamran Khan's News show on September 23, 2020, and there he discussed the case in a
manner whereby the Holding Company's reputation was damaged. He tried to conduct a
media ftrial of the Holding Company and its Directors. Additionally, the Director of
Intelligence and Investigation, Inland Revenue also disclosed our tax and assets details, hence
breached privacy and confidentiality laws.

The Holding Company has filed a law suit in Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) for
damages against the Director General, the Director of South Region and the Deputy Director,
(the Complainant) of the Directorate of I&I, Inland Revenue for a sum of Rs. 1 billion.
Nevertheless, the issue remained pending in Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC).

On July 31, 2015, the Holding Company received a show cause notice under Punjab Rented
Premises Act, 2009, by the landlords of the property measuring 51-Kanals-03-Marlas, or
thereabouts bearing Square No. 94, Killa no. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 & 7, tehsil Faisalabad, near
Abbaspur railway station. The Holding Company uses this land for LPG storage and filing
plant of Faisalabad. The landlords filed an ejectment petition against the Holding Company
and the Holding Company has filed defending argument in the rent tribunal Faisalabad and
case is under hearing stage.
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28.1.8 For the tax year 2016, a notice dated June 25, 2018 was issued to the Holding Company to

28.2

provide certain information / details for audit proceedings. The notice was duly complied.

Show cause notice dated June 13, 2019 was issued to amend assessment w/s 122(9) read with
section 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance (ITO), 2001 which was duly responded on all the
points. Subsequently, order dated August 29, 2019 passed by the DCIR raising null tax
demand due to applicability of minimum tax.

The Holding Company filed appeal to the Commissioner (Appeals) against the aforesaid
order dated August 29, 2019. The said appeal was heard and order passed wherein the
Commissioner (Appeals) has confirmed the certain additions made by the DCIR, whereas, he
has annulled / deleted certain additions i.e. (rent, advertising expenses and financial charges -
profit on debt) as such. Further, the Commissioner (Appeals) has also directed the Officer to
allow credit of actual taxes paid of Rs. 23.45 million subject to due verification. Appeal effect
under section 124 to be filed.

Monitoring of WHT was conducted by the DCIR by issuing a notice under section 176 dated
March 28, 2018 which was duly responded. Thereafter, a show-cause notice dated February
13, 2019 was issued under section 161(1A) confronting on non-withholding of taxes on
certain payments. Response was duly filed and accordingly order dated March 15, 2019 was
passed under section 161 / 205 by the ACIR wherein the total tax demand of Rs. 2.05 million
was raised which comprised the defaulted amount of Rs. 1.552 million; default surcharge of
Rs. 0.49 million.

Against the Order, the Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals-
I) which was heard and appellate order passed dated May 15, 2019 wherein Commissioner
(Appeals-I) remanded back the Order of DCIR with the directions to verify supporting
documentary evidences in respect of expenses claimed to be furnished by appellant company
within seven days time. Following the underlying directions of Commissioner (Appeals-I) the
Company has filed the details of expenses / payments in question vide our letter no. KT-AA-
3707 dated May 22, 2019 to the DCIR for onward proceedings.

The Holding Company filed application dated March 25, 2021 for approval for revision of
return under clause (ba) of subsection 6 of section 114 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for
charging minimum tax w's 113 at the rate 0.2% instead of 1%. The commissioner audit vide
his letter dated May 07, 2021 rejected the request of the Company for granting permission for
revision of return. The Company has filed a petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh with
prayer to direct the Commissioner Inland Revenue to allow revision of return of income for
the tax year 2016 and no adverse order has been passed.

2023 2022
-—————- (Rupees in '000) ———
Commitments
Post-dated cheques 22,122 25,660
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
29 SALES - NET
Gross sales

Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) 2,728,960 4,039,886

Low pressure regulators (LPR) 238 550

2,729,198 4,040,436
Sales return (13,121) (4,907)
Sales tax (338,575) (501,923)

2,377,502 3,533,606

29.1  Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers at the beginning of
the year amounted to Rs. 12.76 million (2023: Rs. 5.92 million).

30 COST OF SALES

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits 30.1 27,799 29,963
Cost of low pressure regulators sold 70 182
Stores and spares consumed 30.3 2,632 1,284
Repairs and maintenance 2,629 4,587
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 2,222 1.690
Depreciation 6.2 7,243 8,024
Amortisation 7.4 10,030 10,030
Rent, rates and utilities 19,862 21,521
Communication charges 763 875
Printing and stationery 374 170
Legal and professional charges 2,741 384
Insurance 4,958 3,914
Signature bonus 3,718 17,165
Security 4,563 4,208
Sundry expenses 491 1,492
Manufacturing cost 90,095 105,489
Opening stock 25,814 44,370
Purchases 30.2 2,131,382 3,258,493

Closing stock 9 (7,733) (25,814)
2.149.463 3,277,049
2,239,558 3,382,538

30.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 0.62 million) in respect of retirement
and other service benefits.
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30.2  This include amount of Rs. 202.47 million (2023: 247.87 million) related to purchases of
LPG from Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) and amount of Rs. 5.96 million (2023:
6.54 million) paid to ADEPT (Private) Limited (APL) for purchasing rights of LPG quota.
On May 13, 2019, the Company entered in to agreement with Byco Petrolenm Pakistan
Limited (BPPL) for purchase of LPG through an arrangement. On June 6, 2019, the Holding
Company entered into a joint venture agreement (the Agreement) with APL being engaged in
oil and gas related business with a quota of 35 MT per day by BPPL. As per the agreement,
APL consented and assigned LPG quota to the Holding Company for marketing and
distribution of LPG including management of operations, maintaining of books of accounts
and records under the agreement. The Board discussed these arrangements and the agreement
and on September 19, 2019, the Board approved the agreement.

As per the revised agreement effective from August 16, 2020, APL is entitled to a fixed profit
amounting to Rs. 4,500 (2023: Rs. 4,500) for each MT net of all taxes of LPG procured
through BPPL while any other profit or loss from marketing and distribution of that LPG 1s
accrued to the Holding Company.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
30.3  Stores and spares consumed

Opening stock 4,321 4,673
Purchases 4,349 932
8,670 5,605

Closing stock 8 (6.,038) (4,321)
2,632 1,284

31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits 31.1 66,286 69,765
Depreciation 6.2 11,196 11,307
Amortisation 7.4 72 88
Repairs and maintenance 2.954 1,823
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 6,260 5,517
Rent, rates and utilities 3,352 1,929
Communication charges 1,651 2,347
Printing and stationery 924 1,059
Legal and professional charges 11,978 17,090
Insurance 3.361 1,804
Advertisement and publicity - 285
Security 2,677 2,043
Donation 31.2 4,787 500
Sundry expenses 2,149 591
117,647 116,148

31.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 4.39 million) in respect of retirement
and other service benefits.
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31.2  This includes Rs. 4.77 million (2023: Nil) paid to Baitussalam Welfare Trust.
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ———
32 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits 32.1 12,830 13,798
Depreciation 6.2 33,774 31,602
Repairs and maintenance 106 776
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 1,005 393
Rent, rates and taxes 1,259 784
Communication charges 339 641
Printing and stationery 68 101
Insurance 381 347
Hospitality charges 3,209 8,705
Freight and octroi 10,860 7,938
Advertisement and publicity - 339
Security 128 165
Sundry expenses 238 291

64,197 65,880

32.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 0.38 million) in respect of retirement
and other service benefits.

33 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts 33.1 868 1,096
Income from non-financial assets
Rental income from storage tanks-cylinders 1,731 1,192
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13,349 1,841
Liability for cylinder deposits and regulator
deposits written back 33.2 26,122 22,131
Old liabilities written back 457 3,018
Recoveries against cylinder replacement 2,367 810
Hospitality income 4,898 402
Storage income 6,988 -
Others 9,036 .
65,816 30,490

33.1  Represents profit on bank accounts under conventional banking relationship.

33.2  During the year, the Holding Company carried out a exercise to identify cylinder and
regulator deposits pertaining to cylinders issued for 10 years and above, which relates to
inactive distributors / customers who are not in business with the Holding Company.
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34

341

35:1

36

37

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
OTHER EXPENSES
Directors' fees 3,300 3,050
Auditors' remuneration 34.1 2.675 2,714
Allowance for expected credit losses 10.1 16,504 1,371
22,479 7,135
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory audit 1,596 1,392
Half yearly review 600 600
Other certification 320 490
Out of pocket expenses and others 159 232
2,675 2,714
FINANCIAL COSTS
Mark-up / interest on:
Short-term loan 35.1 4,866 2,219
Short-term borrowings 36,991 27,732
Long-term loan 20,572 21411
Lease liabilities 7,046 4,575
Workers' Profits Participation Fund - 38
69.475 55,975
Bank charges and commission 349 832
69,824 56,807

This includes mark-up of Rs. 0.55 million (2023: 2.03 million) and Rs. 4.31 million (2023:
0.19 million) at KIBOR+2% on short-term loan obtained from Director and Burshane
Petroleum (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 31.50 million (2023: Rs. 155 million) and Rs.
97.32 million (2023:; 17 million).

MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL

This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance
(ITO), 2001, representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 as disclosed in
note 4.17.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000) ——
TAXATION
Deferred 2,660 6,807
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

37.1  The numerical reconciliation between average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not
been presented during the year in these consolidated financial statements as the total tax
liability of the Holding Company during the year is covered under section 113 Minimum Tax
of ITO, 2001 as it is a higher of Corporate rate tax and Alternate Corporate Tax.

38 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss for the year after taxation (73.812) (66,415)

-————— (Number in '000) ———
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding 22,489 22,489
(Rupees) ————
Loss per share - basic and diluted (3.28) (2.95)

39 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the consolidated financial statements for remunerations,
including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Holding Company
were as follows:

2024 2023
Chief Chief
Executive Directors Executives Total Executive Directors Execufives Total
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
Managerial renuneration 27,099 10,587 19,337 57,023 27.324 10,587 18,905 56,816
Meeting fees 50 250 650 950 150 250 600 1,000
Bonus 2252 BE2 1,589 4,723 3416 1,323 2384 7,123
Retirement benefits 1,800 - 1,328 3,128 1,960 - 1.410 3,370
Travelling and conveyance - - 39 39 - - 63 63
Medical allowance - 100 808 908 - 100 467 567
Total 31,201 11,819 23,751 66,771 32,850 12,260 23,820 68,939
Number of persons 1 1 9 11 | 1 8 10

39.1 In addition, the Chief Executive, the Directors and certain Executives were also provided
with free use of the Company's maintained cars.

39.2  Fee amounting to Rs. 2.15 million (2023: Rs. 1.80 million) was paid to nine (2023: seven)
non-executive directors for attending Board meetings during the year.

40 RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS
40.1 Provident Fund

The following information is based upon the latest un-audited financial statements of the
provident fund as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Size of the fund - total assets
Fair value of investments
Cost of investments
Percentage of investments

2024
Rupees
in '000
Bank deposits 6,301
Mutual funds 3,598
9.899

%

64
36

2024 2023
———— (Rupees in '000) ——

10,053 6.006
9,899 5,899
9,885 5,156

98.33% 85.85%

2023
Rupees .
in '000 "
2,025 34
3.874 66
5,899

Investments out of the Staff Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the
provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this

purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Note

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2024

2023

(Rupees in '000) -——————-

Loss before minimum tax differential and income tax (70,387) (64,412)
Adjustment for non-cash and other items:
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 33 (13,349) (1,841)
Financial charges 35 69,824 56,807
Depreciation 6.2 8z,213 50,933
Amortisation 7.4 10,102 10,118
Provision for retirement and other service
benefits - 455
Allowance for the year 10.1 16,504 1,371
Liability for cylinder deposits written back 33 (26,122) (22,131)
109,172 95,712
Profit before working capital changes 38,785 31,300
Working capital changes 42.1 16,847 93,306
55,632 124,606
421 Working capital changes
Increase / (decrease) in current assets:
Stores and spares (1,717) 352
Stock-in-trade 18,151 18,577
Trade debts 8,621 (15.471)
Loans and advances 16,424 20,359
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14,237 78,621
55,716 102,438
Decrease in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables (38,869) (9,132)
16,847 93,306
43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Amortized cost
Long-term loans including current portion 1,231 150
Long-term deposits 3,174 3,174
Trade debts 76,722 101,847
Deposits and other receivables 19,924 37,005
Bank balances 4,219 20,775
105,270 162,951
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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44

Amortized cost

Long-term loan including current maturity
Trade and other payables

Cylinder and regulator deposits
Accrued mark-up

Lease liabilities
Short-term loan

Short-term borrowings

2024

-———————- (Rupees in '000)

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

2023

101,875 116,677
36,240 78,769

478,068 479,457
26,953 11,886
33,410 20,055
13,388 -

154,000

643,136 686.789

CHANGE IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

As at July As at June
~ Additions i sals Others Cashflows
Description 01,2023 A o e ASEOWS 1 30,2024
(Rupees in '000)

Long-term loan 91,729 £ - (23.019) - G710
Current portion of

long-term loan 24 948 i - 30,009 (21,792) 33,165

Lease liabilities 15,889 19,187 - (11.712) - 23364
Current portion of

lease liabilities 3.996 - - 18,928 (12.878) 10,046

Short-term loan = 128,820 - = (115.432) 13388

Short-term borrowings 153,701 1.247 - = (948) 154,000

Accrued mark-up 11,886 = - 55,788 (40.721) 26,953

2024 302,149 149,254 - 69 994 - 191,771 329,626

As at July As at June

- Additions Disposals Others Cashflows
Description 01,2022 P 30,2023
(Rupees in '000)

Long-term loan 114,345 - - (22.616) - 91,729
Current portion of

long-term loan 23,770 - - 30,471 (29.293) 24,948

Lease liabilities 18,871 2,016 - (4.998) - 15.889
Current portion of

lease liabilities 9.304 - (2,922) 9,403 (11.789) 3,996

Short-term loan 45,000 172,000 - - (217.000) =

Short-term borrowings 151,061 e = 2.640 = 153,701

Accrued mark-up 3,205 45.674 - - (36.993) 11.886

2023 365,556 219,690 (2,922} 14.900 (295.075) 302.149
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45

451

()

i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on having cost effective funding as
well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return
to shareholders. Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance and treasury
department under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and other prices will effect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities. It
mainly arises when receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency.

As majority of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are denominated in Pakistani
Rupees, therefore, the Group, at present, is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is primarily exposed to
interest rate risk arising from long-term loan from bank and bank deposits. Borrowing at
variable rate exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group manages its
interest rate risk by availing at fixed rate and borrowings by placing its excess funds in
saving accounts in banks.

2024 2023 2024 2023
Effective rate Carrying amount
=== (In percent) ——-— ———ee—— (Rupees in "000) ——-—
Financial liabilities

Variable rate instruments

Long-term loan including

current maturity 25.74% 23.98% 101,875 116,677
Short-term loan 25.74% 23 98% I3.388 -
Short-term borrowings 25.49%, 23.73% 154,000 153,701

269.263 270,378

The management of the Group estimates that 1% increase in the market interest rate, with all
other factors remaining constant, would increase/decrease the Group's profit before tax by
Rs. 2.72 million (2023: 2.70 million).
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iii)

(b)

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency
risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Group is not materially exposed to other price risk at

Credit risk

Credit sk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to discharge
an obligation. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures,
limiting transactions with specific counter parties and continually assessing the
creditworthiness of counter parties.

Credit risk of the Group arises from trade debts, loans, deposits and other receivables,
deposits with banks and financial institutions. The Group monitors the credit quality of its
financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets and available external
credit ratings. The carrying amount of financial assets expose to credit risk is as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Long-term loans including current portion 1,231 150
Long-term deposits 3,174 3,174
Trade debts 76,722 101,847
Deposits and other receivables 19.924 37,005
Bank balances 4,219 20,775

105,270 162,951

For trade debts, the credit risk exposure is net of allowance for expected credit losses as
disclosed in note 10.1.

The credit quality of Group’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit
ratings as follows:

Name Rating agency Rating
Short term Long term

2024 2023 2024 2023
Habib Bank Limited VIS Al+ Al+ AAA Al+
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ AAA Al+
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ Al+ AAA Al+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ AA Al+
Sindh Bank Limited VIS Al Al+ A+ Al+
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ AA- Al+
Meezan Bank Limited VIS Al+ Al+ AAA Al+
Bank Makramah Limited VIS Not rated Not rated Not rated Not rated

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

€)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is that the risk the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation. Following are the contractual maturities of the Group’s
financial liabilities:

2024 2023
Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
upto one after Total uplo one after Total
year nne year year one year
-——-— Rupees in "0H) ~—
Financial liabilities
Long-term loan including current
maturity 33,165 68,710 101,875 24,948 91,729 116,677
Lease Liability 10,046 23364 33410 4,166 15889 20,055
Cylinder and regulator deposits - 478,068 478,068 - 479,457 479,457
Trade and other payables - 36,240 36,240 - 78.577 78,577
Short-term loan 13,388 - 13,388 - - -
Short-term borrowings 154,000 = 154.000 153.701 = 153,701
Acerued mark-up 26,953 - 26,953 11,886 - 11,886
237,552 606,382 R43.934 194,701 665.652 860,353

Fair value of hierarchy

Fair value 1s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. As of the reporting
date, Group's all assets and liabilities are carried at amortised cost except for those mentioned
below:

The Group's freehold land and leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair
value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent impairment losses, if any. The fair value
measurement of the Group's freehold land at February 15, 2022 and leasehold land as at June
14, 2022 was carried out by M/s. K. G. Traders (Private) Limited and M/s. Luckyhiya
Associate (Private) Limited (refer note 7.5).

The wvaluation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurement of
aforementioned assets are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from

prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
date (unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of the Group's freehold
land and leasehold land are as follows:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted price in Significant Significant
active markets observable unobservable Total
(level 1) inputs (level 2) | inputs (level 3)

Rupees in '000
Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land - 16,800 - 16,800
Leasehold land - 569,288 - 569.288
2024 - 586,088 - 586,088

Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land - 16,800 - 16,800
Leasehold land - 569,288 - 569,288
2023 - 586,088 - 586.088

46 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business sustain future development of
the business and maximize shareholders value. The Group monitors capital using a debt
equity ratio as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Lease liability 33,410 20,055
Cylinder and regulator deposits 478,068 479,457
Short-term loan 13,388 =
Short-term borrowings 154,000 153,701
Long-term loan including current maturity 101,875 116,677
Trade and other payables 65,038 103,907
Unclaimed dividends 83,050 83.050
Deferred taxation - net - 2,660
Accrued mark-up 26,953 11,886
Total debt 955,782 971,393
Cash and bank balances 4,407 20,853
Net debt 960,189 992,246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Share capital 224,888 224,888

Revenue reserves (215,122) (141,310)

Reserver for amalgamation 153,458 153,458

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of

retirement and other service benefits (30,171) (30,171)

Revaluation surplus on property 336,715 336,715
Total equity 469,768 543.580
Capital 1,429,957 1,535,826
Gearing ratio 67.15% 64.61%

47 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

These corresponding figures have been reclassified and rearranged where necessary to
facilitate comparison, however there has been no significant reclassification except for the

following:

Description Note From To (Rupees in '"000)
Reclas:mﬁcatmn of current - o e o
and prior year tax expense to axdlion differential (8,810

final taxes - levy
2024 2023
(Quantity in metric ton)
48 CAPACITY

Installed annual filling capacity 37,500 37,500
Actual utilization 48.1 30,960 30,960

48.1 This include storage and filling capacity of hospitality locations utilization. The variations
are due to change in market demand.

2024 2023
No. of employees
49 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

As at the reporting date 80 79
Average number of employees during the year 77 74
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
50 GENERAL

These consolidated financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand rupee,
unless stated otherwise.

51 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on October 04, 2024 by
the Board of Directors of the Group.

] /6/- i
& £ / tebn i a2
DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND
COMMITTEES MEETINGS

Nisia Board of Directors Audit Committee R?;‘:‘::?éjﬁ“;:;;;‘:ie
Member | Meetings | Attendance | Member | Meetings | Attendance | Member | Meetings | Attendance
Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami L 4 4 4 ¢ 4 4
Mr. Asad Alam Niazi ¢ 4 1 ¢ 1 -
Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin ¢ 4 4 ¢
Maj. G. (R) Rafiullah Khan ¢ 4 4 ¢ 4 4 ¢
Maj. G. (R) Abid Latif Khan ** ¢ 2 2
Brig. Rashid Siddiqi (R) ¢ 4 4
Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi * ¢ 1 1 L4
Mr. Ali Alam Niazi * ¢ 4 3 ¢ 3
Mr. Khalid Dar ** ¢ 2 2 \4 1 1
Ms. Shahbano Hameed ¢ 4 4
Mr. Osman Malik ¢ 4 2

* Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi resigned from the Board w.e.f. October 03, 2023 and Mr. Ali Alam Niazi was appointed in her place w.e.f.
October 03, 2023.

** Mr. Khalid Dar resigned from the Board w.e.f. October 30, 2023 and Maj. G. (R) Abid Latif Khan was appointed in his place w.e.f.
October 30. 2023 and resigned from the Board w.e.f. April 05, 2024,

Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not attend the meetings.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

595 1 100 10,383 0.0462

189 101 500 70,476 03134

113 501 1000 103,504 0.4602

177 1001 5000 458,131 2.0371

29 5001 10000 234,712 1.0437

9 10001 15000 106,601 0.4740

4 15001 20000 74,522 0.3314

4 20001 25000 86.552 0.3849

4 25001 30000 112,164 0.4988

1 30001 35000 33,500 0.1490

1 35001 40000 39,500 0.1756

| 40001 50000 48,702 0.2166

2 50001 55000 106.236 0.4724

1 55001 60000 57,632 0.2563

| 60001 75000 71,500 0.3179

2 75001 85000 163,558 0.7273

1 85001 12000 120,000 0.5336

| 12001 145000 140,248 0.6236

1 145001 235000 233,500 1.0383

2 235001 310000 620,000 2.7569

| 310001 385000 380,569 1.6923

1 385001 1340000 1,336,033 5.9409

1 1340001 1820000 1,816,238 8.0762

| 1820001 3545000 3,544,787 15.7624

1 3545001 3740000 3,738,000 16.6215

1 3740001 8785000 8,781,842 39.0497

1,144 22 488,890 100

- . - o NUMBER BALANCE . =

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING OF FOLIO SHARE PERCENTAGE

DIRECTORS, CEO & CHILDREN 7 12,329,129 54.8232

NIT & ICP 1 9,489 0.0422

BANKS, DFI & NBFI 3 1,850,599 8.2289

MODARABAS & MUTUAL FUNDS 1 1,336,033 5.9409

GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 1097 6,765,526 30.0839

GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 25 40,200 0.1788

OTHERS 10 157,914 0.7022

COMPANY TOTAL 1,144 22 488,890 100.0000

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights

DIRECTORS 7 12,329,129 54.8232
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 3 1,826,588 8.1222
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 1,336,033 5.9409
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE LETTER

To: Date:

Subject  Bank account details for payment of Dividend through electronic mode
Dear Sir,
|We/Messrs._,

being al/the shareholder(s) of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited [the "Company”], hereby, authorize the Company, to directly credit cash
dividends declared by it, in my bank account as detailed beiow

(i) Shareholder’s details:

Name of the Shareholder

CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. /CDC |AS

CMIC/MICOP/Passport/NTH No. (please attach copy)

Contact Mumber (Landline & Cell Nos))

Sharehelder's Address

(ii) Shareholder’s Bank account details:

Title of Bank Account

IBAN (See MNote 1 below)

Bank’s Name

Branch MName & Code Mo

Branch Address

It I1s stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and | shall keep the Company, informed in case of any changes In the said
particulars in future

Yours truly,

Signature of Shareholder
(Plezsapiiy stamp in case of corporate entity)

Motes:
1. Reas provide complete IBAN, after checking withyour concerned branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

2. This letter must be sent to shareholder's participant/CDC Investor Account Services which maintains his/her CDC account for
incorporation of bank account details for direct credit of cash dividend declarad by the Company from time to time
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
Suite No. 101, First Floor Horizon Vista
Plot# Commercial -10,

Block -04, Scheme # 05

Clifton, Karachi. 75600

| / We of being a member of Burshane LPG (Pakistan)
Limited and holder of ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No. and /or CDC
Participant 1.D. No and Sub Account No. hereby appoint
Mr./Mrs./Miss of or falling him

of as my proxy to attend and act for me, and on
my behalf, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at our Korangi Plant (KP1)
adjacent to Pakistan Refinery Limited, Korangi Creek, Karachi on the , at

and any adjournment thereof.

Dated this day of 2024.
(Specimen Signature of Proxy)
Folio No.
Revenue Stamp Participant [.D. No.
Rs. 10/= Sub Account No.
C.N.1.C./ Passport Number:
(Signature of Share Holder) (Specimen Signature of Alternate Proxy)
Folio No. Folio No.
Participant I.D. No. Participant 1.D. No.
Sub Account No. Sub Account No.
C.N.I.C./ Passport Number: C.N.I.C./ Passpori Number:
(Signature of Witness 1) (Signature of Withess 2)
Name: Name:
C.N.I.C./ Passport Number: C.N.I.C./ Passport Number:
Address: Address:
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by

purshane

Suite 101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vistq,
Plot No. Commmercial - 10, Block-4
Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi - 75600

Tel : + 92 21 35878356, 35309870 & 73
UAN : +92 21111 111 BPL (275)
Fax: +92 21 3587 8353
www.burshane.com



